
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, 

and Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled
on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, 
the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless

removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled will
be considered at the end of the agenda.) 

A Approval of Meeting Minutes
March 1, 2016 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: Jim P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in

this agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted

by title only

D. Denial of Claim

The City Council will consider denying the claim against the City. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Deny Claim

E. Approval of Final Map for Tentative Map TM0047 located at 8137 Cascio Court

The City Council will consider approval of Tentative Map TM0047. WC Group, LLC, 
owner of the parcel, has satisfied the conditions of approval for the proposed

subdivision and requests approval of the Final Map. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

City of Lemon Grove
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda

fm

f   y March 15, 2016, 6: 00 p. m. Tuesday, 
Lemon Grove Community Center

3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, 

and Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled
on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, 
the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless

removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled will
be considered at the end of the agenda.) 

A Approval of Meeting Minutes
March 1, 2016 — Regular Meeting

Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: Jim P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in

this agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted

by title only

D. Denial of Claim

The City Council will consider denying the claim against the City. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Deny Claim

E. Approval of Final Map for Tentative Map TM0047 located at 8137 Cascio Court

The City Council will consider approval of Tentative Map TM0047. WC Group, LLC, 
owner of the parcel, has satisfied the conditions of approval for the proposed

subdivision and requests approval of the Final Map. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



F. Acceptance of the Sewer Capital Improvement Project: Lining

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District will consider accepting the sewer lining work
as complete per the contract specifications and authorize the City Manager to file a
notice of completion with the County of San Diego. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

G. Amend the Design Contract for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation Project

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District will consider a change order for potholing
services to confirm the location of the surrounding utilities in close proximity to the
sewer lines proposed for rehabilitation. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

H. Request for Qualifications — Preparation of California Environmental Quality Act
Compliance Documents for the General Plan Update

The City Council will consider approving and authorizing release of a Request for
Qualifications ( RFQ) to identify qualified consultants in the preparation of required

environmental documents, for the City's General Plan Update. 

Reference: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director
Recommendation: Authorize Release of Request for Qualifications

2. New Business

None, 

3, Public Hearing

A. Public Hearing for Review of the 2015 General Plan Annual Progress Report

The City Council will conduct a public hearing, review and authorize the
submission of a General Plan Annual Progress Report ( Report) to the State. 

Reference: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director
Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Resolution

B Underground Utility District No. 7

The City Council will consider extending the deadline for the conversion of the
overhead distribution facilities for Phase 7A and 7B of the Underground Utility
District ( UUD) No. 7 to April 1, 2016, due to multiple unforeseen challenges with

regards to the Lemon Grove Realignment Project. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Resolution

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
GC 53232. 3 ( d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings

attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non -Action Items) 



Closed Session

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph

2) or ( 3) of subdivision ( d) of Section 54956. 9: 

Two Cases

Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation pursuant to Government Code
Subdivision ( a) of Section 54956. 9: Guillen v Ig et al Case # 37 -2016 -00005522 -CU -EI -CTL

Adjournment

In coinutaUuance Mliro tlhe Aroeriicans with IDS sally ktues duct ( AI DA), the City of Leann Grove uwM trirovIde specuaU accoravrrucdatucns for persons who
require assistance to access, attend and/ or partiIblpate In irneetings of the City Cou i ncII. Ut your requ Ire such assustance, pease contact tlhbe Cuty
Clerk at ( 6t 9) 825- 3800 or ernalll sgaircla llleuuirangirove. ca. Iry phoir to the rneeturu . A f ullll agenda picket us avabble fuer pu bhc revueww at City
114111



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

March 1, 2016

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency

Call to Order

Members present: Mayor Mary Sessom, Mayor Pro Tem George Gastil, Councilmember Jerry Jones, 
Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza, and Councilmember Racquel Vasquez. 

Members absent: None. 

City Staff present: Lydia Romero, City Manager, Dave DeVries, Acting Development Services
Director; Daryn Drum, Division Fire Chief; Monica Gonzalez, Community
Services Assistant; Dave Huey, Community Services Superintendent; James P
Lough, City Attorney; Mike James, Public Works Director; Lt. May, Sheriff' s
Department; and Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director; Laureen Ryan Ojeda, 

Administrative Analyst. 

Presentations

Introduction of Captain Garmo, San Diego Sheriffs Department I Rancho San Diego Command

Recognition of Deputy Katrantzis, San Diego Sheriffs Department

Public Comment

1.. Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
February 16, 2016 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. City of Lemon Grove Investment Policy (2016) 
E. Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Plan

F. Recruitment of Hearing Officers for Code Enforcement Citation Appeals

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gastil, to approve
the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2016- 3389: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove California
Approving the City of Lemon Grove Investment Policy for 2016

Resolution No. 2016- 3390: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Amending the Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Plan Fee

Resolution No. 2016- 3391: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Approving the Recruitment of Hearing Officers for Code Enforcement Citation Appeal
Hearings



2. New Business

A. Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2014- 15

Gibert Rojas, Interim Finance Director, stated that the City contracted with Badawi & Associates

to complete the Fiscal Year 2014- 15 Independent Audit. 

Mr. Ahmed Badawi, Badawi & Associates, provided a presentation and was available to the City
Council to answer questions and noted that a correction will be made under " Fiduciary Fund
Financial Statements" change the word " two" to " one" and under the Sanitation District change

from " dump fee to waste water fee." 

B. Recreation Focus Group Presentation

Mike James reported that in 2015, the City Council established a goal to create a focus group to
explore the establishment of a Recreation Council. In June 2015, that goal was further
expanded to include sub -tasks affiliated with this objective that included: 

1. Identify the existing recreational opportunities for Lemon Grove residents in and near the
city, 

2. Identify recreational needs in the community, including parries and opportunities to meet
those needs, and

3. Provide a recommendation of the role a recreation council can play in the community, 
including: the recreation council' s form, whether it is a city established entity, its purpose, 
staff time required to support, funding issues/ opportunities, etc. 

The focus group was made up of the following volunteers: 

Paul Gorden

Tiare Hamilton

Matthew Johnson

Eric Lund

Beatriz Mendoza

Gabriela Rivers

Denise Strattman

Katie Dexter

The consensus of the Focus Group was that a recreation council will play an important role in
the future ability to increase the City' s recreation program. The central premise behind this idea
is to create a non- profit organization that will supplement the City' s recreation program with
fundraising activities and promotions. 

The Focus Group reviewed current and previous programs and made the following
recommendations: 

All current special events should be maintained. 

Pee wee sports should be maintained. 

After school program should also be created and brought back under affordable terms
and conditions. 

Adult programs ( other than softball) should also be brought back after the youth

programs are well established. 

Youth basketball and soccer programs could be combined with the City' s pee wee sports
program. 



In addition to specifically responding to the topics City Council asked the focus group to respond
to there were additional points of information that the group felt were important to share which
may help facilitate the expansion of its recreation program. 

The Focus Group envisioned a phased approach to any actions that are taken to implement a
recreation council. The first step identified was to create a non- profit organization now with a
timeline for follow- up on programs after the non- profit is solidified. 

A marketing plan was also defined with recommendations to create a Recreation Facebook
page, outreach to local faith based organizations and the Lemon Grove Family Resource
Center, place a banner at Broadway and Lemon Grove Avenue, mail post cards promoting new
recreation programs, use the City' s e- mail notifications, partner with the Lemon Grove School
District, and online marketing to attract volunteers and support the new recreation program. 

Fundraising goals were discussed and recommendations such as generating at least 75 percent
with the remaining 25 percent funded by the City and creating special fund raising events to
generate the initial monies required to start the program. 

The City Council received the report regarding the Recreation Services Focus Group and
provided direction to staff. 

3. Public Hearing

A. Planned Development Permit Modification PDP -006- 09M1

Dave DeVries reported that in September 2014, the City and San Diego Community Land Trust
SDCLT) entered into a purchase option agreement for the eventual sale of 8084 Lemon Grove

Way. SDCLT requested to complete the project as entitled and submitted draft construction
drawings on January 20, 2016. 

A substantial conformance review was performed and the Acting Development Services
Director determined that the proposed changes to the siding materials and roof lines do not
substantially conform to the approved plans and a planned development permit modification is
required. 

On February 8, 2016, SDCLT submitted a planned development permit modification request for
City Council to consider the revised elevation and floor plans. 

Mayor Sessom opened the public hearing. 

Public Speaker( s) 

Jean Diaz, San Diego Community Land Trust, commented on the project and expressed
appreciation to the City Council. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gastil, to close
the public hearing and adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2016- 3392: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Approving Planned
Development Permit Modification PDP -006- 09M1 Modifying the Floor Plan, Roof Line and Roof
Siding Materials for an Approved Nine Unit Residential Development on 0. 37 Vacant Acres at
8084 Lemon Grove Way ( Northside Commons) 

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. ( GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 



Councilmember Jones attended the East County Chamber regalia ( not at the city' s expense), 
along with their Legislative Monthly meeting, and CALTRANS Safety Summit. 

Councilmember Mendoza attended a Thrive Lemon Grove meeting and reported that the Lemon
Grove Lions Club first ever event to be held Saturday March 19th from 9- 3p. m. 

Councilmember Vasquez attended the Citizens Water Academy Graduate 3 -day course
sponsored by the County of San Diego, Voice and Viewpoint Gala, Heartland Fire Committee
meeting, and the State of the County Address. 

Mayor Pro Tem Gastil attended the MTS meeting for February, LA/ SD/ SLO Rail Corridor
meeting, and Troop 108 - Cub Scout' s annual awards event. 

Mayor Sessom had nothing to report. 

City Manager and Department Director Reports

Lt. May thanked council for receiving the presentations. 
Lydia Romero updated council on the medical marijuana dispensaries. 

Closed Session

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation Significant exposure to litigation

pursuant to paragraph ( 2) or ( 3) of subdivision ( d) of Section 54956. 9: 
One Case

Closed Session Report: No reportable action was taken. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency the meeting was adjourned at 7: 40 p. m. 

s 6

Susan Garcia, City Clerk

4



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary

Approved as Submitted: 

Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director ACH/ Alo Checks 02/ 20/ 16- 03/ 17/ 16 479, 666A6

For Council Meeting: 03/ 15// 16

NOMEMIUM 127, 675. 67

Total Demands 110/, 342. 1,3

OC :: K NO WVOIW4: NO VILAD019 NAME
CHECK

DB. R9PVl0N J' FCK hl: 11: 00' VA

NA' r. 

1' 164 L06906382. 72 Eimnobyi,— nt D— ftprnovrk Dap. rb— nt 2.123120 lb lhn— ployr- rtt hnsuiraince Ort Dec' 15 Rd 00 M4 00

1 1116 2/ 116116- 2/ lB/ 16 IBgilll Corp— H- 2/ 23/ 2016 75% Building team, 2/ 1611. 62/ 1. 3116 6, 92818 110, 19 18

1616 00034840 Hudr— S9, T Lite, R. WW 2/ 2. 5/ 2016 Street N. ree Sig- 227135 1: 1 / 85

94445613!: 3. 00 Hyd,. Pinad- ft, n, 2/ 23/ 20116 GWe/ Ell- t, k Sq,pim 2444 t ef

001 07- 2043 Lcm- n Gru- khoni Dktidct 2/ 23/ 20141 F- 1 Se, vke, PW: OuUS 1, 852 03 p' Wr Y8' 9

0 310147 MA 2/ 2- 3/ 2. 0116 AC M. fint--- - 0iV Haill 213000 4' 3101' 00

318148 Ac - shc' W stin 490 W 

318149 ACM, dra.,,' , xe FhoSln 210 00

318150 ACM. int. nanc: e C-- NVC. Iltal 15500

318151 AC Mainleinance . Rec Center 2). 000

5214 2016 414 Q- 11ity Cod. Put sNng LLC 2.1/ 23/ 20116 MunicipM Code U4pd, nng/ Wd, Mair roinanco U113 00 3, 212 82

201644 Pifinied lMuulnic. ipai Code Suppicineirit 0 VPL' 

2016 44 Pi6alod MuinUpall Code Supplement 76 4": n

2016 44 Pointed KnnMpall Code supplafreinL 31112. 4" 

8'? H 9760410749 V. Hz.. Wireless 2/ 23/ 2016 City Ph—. Chargcs 1/ 11: 2/ 7. 6- 2/ W2/ 19 3' 54.. 01 57626

9760430750 Plh.- Chug., - PW- 1113/ 16 2/ 1. 2/ 119 222. 23

75769903 W. xk! S. nil. iy SuPply 2/ 23/ 2016 Cleaning Supplies 11, 625 m 11, 62586

67385" - g BJ" c IRent, als 2123/ 2016 P, q,-, 2646 54 05

675293- 9 Prop— 2.759

802049316 Boundlifee Medicai LIC 2113/ 2016 IM4ediir. 11l suplpk- 24 10 1, 6802

HA92293 M., Ii,. i S. Jplpli. 143. 62

011 W2.53 State l' C. 11l., nk Departirnalli nQ A' all- 2/ 23/ 2016 Fingerprint Apps - Jan' 16 9 ' 1013 Q. 00

1: 2.!'.47 56561. 652.841 A0. Z. na, Ilna. 2/ 23/ 2016 Motor Oil/ Antilreeze/ Coolant 12797' 12797

P 2016088 M.' U" & Ch. piman Co 2/ 23/ 2016 Hection Foiirins/ NoniIipa4ion Vapci,/ Rtquh- ncyns 134 90 16450

2E60911 C. 11 - d., aff E: - eh 111/ 049/ 16 2960

4181 112Viti41 CRY of L. M— 2/ 23/ 20116 O- rfirn. R- ohu-- nt LMe,. 1/ 6 1/ 17 10 P 220 62

A" 2259W. 0, 217 Cup Conhi— ifticafir, 115 2/ 23/ 2016 C. Fian- IVI. da m, tan .: 2'2.5° 2 WrVastnirrd3taary 2161 6 11 W 72 64

707uwiv- 217 Call - r— M. donn Ll - 7' 0711 W Vernon- 2/ 6/ 10-3/' 5/ 116 1. 918! 3

Fi Burp- 2/ 8. 5 BJU Phi.—/ id m 17853 Cent, W 2/ 7/ 16 - 3/ 6/ 16 31. 5,° i

0 1 VIVO ' 159W 1 Offik . Ad- ai. ge, In,, 2/ 23/ 2016 Office Supplies 109 ' Al fi' : 9

WO NAY I Office supplies 90

1 168 intc, knkichnnii nt., linlk Planning Clip 2/ 23120116 RoN,, d/ intcrdink Wen,, ing C3— p/ CUP - 010- 31214; 81. 2- 000 2481 1 V, 1" U, P, 

AA1 Cairiha, VMan C. 1, 11111o, vi, win 2/ 23/ 20116 Refund/ Cairillo, VWlan/ Dej—% ft CorrivyKir 2- 13 16 1444140' 100033

W 02. 12162305 Dorne% toc Lonen Cahia- ia inc 2/ 2. 3/ 20116 sii,, ip - r—+, & s. ic.ty IVia¢ s M P, 14115 h

111h S. Niv—, Mwil, e Sailinas, Martha 2/ 23120116 2- 1B- 16 AM Wq, 100 00

A' Fn11, 22 R6 SANDPIPA 2/ 23120116 Er?"". Ir" iC F,— lt— 00 Ab W

1 11 12 1v1- 8 b1. 6 M. ifir", IKoflin 212312016 ( ok Ph. ne R. imlb— cr- W- 1. 11- OU' R5, 55' 16 I In 00 N: 10 00

PA I i DaQ' B San Diego County -Shavill' s DeperUnent 212312016 La. Enlmr— nent Sc-- 14- 15 4 1, i! 00 & I 1, 11: 1' 40. 11: 3

Mll AcMi 2/ 2. 5/ 16 Plt- y On— Gialb. 11 Fir,— ii. i Sc, Wre, UC 2/ 24/ 20116 P- tagm Lh. go, 212311. 6 11004 0a

ACI 11 440311045 WEX WniiM Ep, o- 1- 11— t S— klm 2/ 24/ 2016 Fuel hire, Dept J-' 16 p 1, 3 84 99

02122116 02125/ 1. 6 Brill C. q W— 3/ 1120116 75% Bnildlng l e,- 212211, 6 2125/ 16 0" 10 n80 1311+ W 49' 113



52417

I P 290

5292

5282

5299

5 2FA

5285

5263

5294

313' 152

11111- 15

30110222395

OM

30745544

1 m7op 

353674- 2

3546117- 1

02 72529 SCS Erogiineeiis

39472 Dn E. Q County Cziifi- g- 

411679 N. R. Irm

6777296- 9 UP, R. nhh, 

32059425 lli. urwftree PA. dfuLIC

PAN M ... V W6. inf,. 1 Irvc

rvlpc: C- 0— An," 

P., kh.— Ti,. lim

Pr. T. dh hdr,stri- 

RCP Hind & grid, l.,, 

Rid, Engln-, Inig C— p. ny

RJ s. f. iy C. i"'. 

71044797

M044798

6850

iNVJ63B

WO 26335

3075

3MI- I

FSAN2

29945

02261, 52305

N. V- D. ds

FlerinhiMunner

L ii. Tr. phi. 3. A,—& 

Neogov Himante

Wfte Adv. m. p, Ilmc

D M. x Dolgiin- fling llro, 

Ryan . 0p da, Lar— cn

Dokk- Engineeririg

D. m. tlr Lin- Uff—, ia

1). Vr !,.,, D.- 

Peirmft Runire. r

311112016 AC M. iMuome- Seni., C- tv 32. 000 32000

3/ 1/ 2016 C. va, 134. ckpii. — N. th M. S' zoo no 5, 2( 10 00

3/ 1/ 2016 EJO lrleI[ Reiyl. ce- ent 2, 032 25 2, 03225

3/ 1/ 2016 Dlwnfe, tant 4: 31.. 56 43156

3/ 1/ 2016 Concrete LG Park Exevdse Equipment krsitahtfon 7029 1029

3/ 1/ 2016 FIWessi-. l S— i—, 1,/ 1/ 16 - 1/ 29/ 116 5, 82! 15, 01 5' 82sm

11112016 GI.— 34. 25 20467

Gi. ves 12042

3/ 1/ 2016 ProbessionaiServices- hnuary I lanuairy- y 11, 2016 2, 061 00 2' m 00

3/ 1/ 2016 Publi'. He. ri,, g 39472 14150 1. 4350

3/ 9/ 2016 P,. k. W. nW S- 0 . r Mm— lb., I- De- mbe, 311, 2015 16, 220. n0 16, 22000

39( 1/ 20 16 G: quipuvnuelmt W LG P., k Exemirs. Equ[ prnerQ n, k. Il. tl. n 7200 7200

3/ 1/ 2016 W. ve j ift, b. td Tube/ M., ks 6::36. 37 63867

3/ 1/ 20196 Agh. 11ft 13414 343011

A, pli,. Ilt 20687

3/' 1( 20116 Fire inspedoir Name Badge 9. 72 9. 72

13/ 9/ 2016 Fin--. DIred., fi-,.[ A— A 75 00 1 5 ml

3111/ 2016 Larninating Tapp, 3828 38 28

1/ 1/ 2016 Tr— Ch., g. s ILG C- st sA— 2016 2, 801 811 3, 119306

TiWov. Charges: My Wide Coinciebe Rv.paiv 391215

3/ 1/ 2016 FSA # 2 Re[ mlbw— ont- 2/ 9- 216/: 1. 6 24906 249 M

3/ 1/ 20 16 5—fte, Th - 3h Mn, mll— 1, 2015- Jui— y 31, 2016 4, 23640 4, 23640

3/ 11/ 2016 Sh. p T- 0, & S. f, iV M. t, M75 9O. 7'.5

3/ 11/ 2016 COph.- Rerrnhunseme. 0 Nov - D- 15 7000 7600

3/ 1/ 2016 Reftonvll PerrvO Rnnineir/ Q"— nit llss-. d Twice 110. 94 14994

479, 666A6 479, 66646



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date March - 15, 2016

Dept. µµµµµµµµµPublic Works

Item Title: Denial of Claim' 

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Deny a claim submitted by Laura Gonzalez. 

Item Summary: 

On December 8, 2015, the City of Lemon Grove received a timely filed claim from Laura Gonzalez, 
Staff recommends denying the claim based on the findings of the initial investigation. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

None. 

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

f Neighborhood meeting



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1, E. 

Mtg. Date March 15, 2018

Dept. Public Works— 

Item Title: Approval of Final Map for Tentative Map TM0047 located at 8137 Cascio Court

Staff Contact: Tim Gabrielson, Interim City Engineer and Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) approving the Final Map for Tentative Map TM0047 and
authorize the City Clerk to accept the offers of dedication and easements on the Final Map. 

Item Summary: 

On August 18, 2009, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted Resolution No. 2892, 2893, and 2894
Attachment B) approving Tentative Map TM0047 which authorized a 12 -unit condominium and
common areas subdivision on 0. 73 gross acres of land located at 8137 Cascio Court in Lemon
Grove. 

WC Group, LLC, the owner of said parcel, has satisfied the conditions of approval for the proposed
subdivision and requests approval of the Final Map for TM0047. Performance bonds and

subdivision agreements are in place to ensure that conditions of approval are met and the project

is completed in the manner approved by City Council. 

If adopted, the Resolution ( Attachment A) will authorize the City Clerk to execute the Final Map
and accept the offer of dedication' 

Fiscal Impact: 

The City will receive $ 2, 310 for each new residential unit constructed in accordance with the

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( RTCIP). 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

B. City Council Resolution No. 2892, 2893, 
2894

Negative Declaration

Adopted ND09- 03

w Notice to property owners within 300 ft, 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA APPROVING A

FINAL MAP FOR TENTATIVE MAP TM0047

WHEREAS, On August 18, 2009, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted Resolution No. 
2892, 2893, and 2894 approving Tentative Subdivision Map TM0047, as meeting the
requirements of the City' s Subdivision Ordinance and the California Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Final Map for Tentative Map TM0047 attached hereto as Exhibit ' A' has
been submitted and meets the requirements as set forth in the California Government Code

section 66433, et. Seq. and is now ready for approval by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, WC Group, LLC, as the owner of the project has paid all fees required by
the conditions for processing of the Final Map; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Acting Development Services and the City Engineer have
found said Final Map of Tract No. 0047 substantially conforms to the conditionally approved
Tentative Map, as required by the California Subdivision Map Act. 

WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration ( ND09- 03) was certified by City Council
for Tentative Map No. 0047 on August 18, 2009; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby finds: 

1. The Final Map is consistent with the General Plan, the California Subdivision Map
Act, and is in substantial conformance with the previously approved Tentative Map
TM0047); and

2. The Final Map for Tentative Map No. 0047 is hereby approved, and the City Clerk is
authorized and directed to certify this fact on the face of the Final Map; and

3. All offers the dedication of real property to the City identified on the Final Map are
accepted by the City of Lemon Grove; and

4. Authorizes the City Clerk to record a certified copy of this resolution. 

3r. 



OSQ

Attachment
A — 

Exhibit
1

4v

ILLa.
y

lZ' 

41

Z

5

LU,

v,

41rvr

EL

Lu

P"!, 

u -
x

Id

ir

WUbIrErIIIl:, 1 

I    

I ,  "", 

w

0

1W

CE

s

arrsrr"
TI,
f,

f

Yj

Co

i

v

Plii
rr

w

Y

u,

2

W

qIJ

It

A

0i.
rro

jl 

ISM, 

IT ,

N

do, 

z

4E
I, 

Ir

I" 

Q 

c

v

rSU
F

Po

K
I, 

I

NOR



Attachment
A — 

Exhibit
1

WWCOILL0NW
Ito

3

ey, 

5

g'

I

UM
VN

IIPI

E

14, 

W

lie

ra
V

e

11

6

4"'!

l

DIY

W" 

gh

Ir

4 

IT

MA
WIW'

1F, 



Attachment
A — 

Exhibit
1

I

A

H

0

AN

w

11111V

6

5

Cl

b
CO

ej

rq- 

LL

Attachment
A — 

Exhibit
1

I

A

H

0

AN

ir

4A

CO

ej

LL

ol

Nip

ir

f.

r. 
ol

UN

M



AI

Ad" 

Ell

u

n

uj

IL0

W) 

si

Ar

In

Ltdll
it, 

v, 

W

TR

4f

lzm "

A

g', 

1W

2

A

o

2,
q, 

2a

F" 

I

W" 

a

4ii

M , , 

A

pl""' 

tlo
p", 

qt
t" 

5o

Z

A!" 

3M '
j, 

l, 

81

Vi

4"", 

0 '

M

4; 

Q

k' 

i

9 !

4  

m

1118 
ll

Ill
1 " ", '

8 

1111
9

op

9'

M

4

AI

Ad" 

Ell

uj

W) 

Ar

1W

o

qJ

op



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2892

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING VARIANCE
REQUEST VA06- 002 TO ALLOW A REDUCTION FROM ONE OF THE TWO FRONT
YARD SETBACKS AND A REDUCTION OF THE OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS

FOR A 12 -UNIT CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 8137 CASCIO
COURT

WHEREAS, Mrs, Kevin Leon,, on behalf of Center Hilltop Associates, filed a
cotntflete application for a varlance request on June 1, 2009, to reduce one of two front
yard setbacks and to reduce open space requirements outlined irk SectJoo ' 17. 24. 070 of
ttve Munlcipal Code on 0. 73 gross acres of land located at 8137 Cascio Court; and, 

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ( ND09- 
03) will be filed subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove
Planning Commission on July 27, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission also considered Planned Development
Permit ( PDP04- 002) and Tentative Map ( condominium) ( TM0047) associated with this
Variance VA06- 001; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission found that the proposed Variance request
VA06-002) complies with the findings of fact required to approve this project pursuant to
Development Code Section 17. 28. 0 60( 13) and recommends approval to the City
Council; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on August 18, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is also considering Planned Development Permit
PDP04- 002) and Tentative Map ( condominium) ( TM0047) associated with this Variance

VA06- 001; and

WHEREAS, the Council determined that the following findings of fact as required
by Section 17. 28.060( 6) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code could be made as follows: 

1) There are fapecial circijrnsta nc , s or exceptional characlorlrbcs applicable to the
property involved, incli, i dkng 9ize, shape„ topogeaphy at location that do not apply
generally to other property or, class of uses in the vicinity and kinder identical
zone classification, so that a derlial of the applicarlion would result in undue

property loss; and

The subject property is a vacant property near SR94 and categorized as
a through lot having two street frontages which require two 25 -foot
front yard setbacks. The northern property line is bounded by a private
street easement and the southern property line is bounded by public
roadway. Front yard setbacks are measured from tete public street right- 
of-way and the access easement line into the property. Dedication and
street improvements aro' required on both streets further reducing the
area available for development. The site is bisected by a 10 -foot sewer

easement which prohibits any structures and restricts landscape
plantings and features. The site contains a significant slope consisting

M



Attachment B

of a 40 -foot vertical difference from the north side of the property to the
south side. The applicant is requesting a reduction of the front yard
setback from Casclo Court, the private street. The additional dedication

for road easement purposes is irregular and varies from 5 -feet to 10 -feet

In order to accommodate accessible sidewalk area behind the private

driveway entrance. The proposed front yard setback on Casclo Court
varies from 10 -feet to 5 -feet. The site warrants a reduction of this street

setback in order to accommodate other design features accommodating
vehicle access ( both non -emergency and emergency), pedestrian

sidewalk standards, and to accommodate the proposed density of the
project. 

The applicant is requesting a reduction of the open space requirement
from 6, OOOsq, ft. to 4, 100 sq. ft because of the existing constraints on
the site and to accommodate a density compatible to the General Plan
Purpose and Goals and the Municipal Code requirements. The slope of

the site, final grading and the water quality requirements precludes a
large area of open area- from being considered as open space. The

applicant has provided private balconies, open on -grade patio areas

and a rooftop activity deck ( carport). The site is also within 600 -feet of

Kunkel Park. The site and density goals warrant a reduction of the open
space requirements. 

2) The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial
property right of the applicant such as that possessed by owners of other
property in the same vicinity and zone, but which is denied to the property in
question; and

Other properties in the same vicinity and zone enjoy similar reductions
of setbacks along the private and public roads in the vicinity and appear
to contain very little if any open space consistent with the current
Municipal Code open space standards. This condition provides support

for the required finding of fact that this variance is necessary for the
preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right possessed
by the owners of other property in the same vicinity and zone. 

3) The granting of such variance will not be detrimental to the public interest, safety, 
health or welfare, and will not be detrimental or injurious to the property of
improvements in the same vicinity and zone in which the property is located; 

This variance request will not be detrimental to the public interest, 

safety, health or welfare or injurious to the property or improvements to
the vicinity and zone in which the property is located because the
construction will be required to meet structural design standards and

will improve vehicular emergency and non -emergency access. 

4) The granting of such variance will not be contrary to or in conflict with the general
purposes and intent of this Title, nor to the goals and programs of the General

Plan. 

The variance request is not inconsistent with the General Plan because

the proposed design meets the minimum density required and achieves
the highest density possible given the constraints on the site, general
plan implementation programs relating to multifamily development, and

Z



Attachment B

the municipal code standards consistent with the policies of the Lemon

Grove General Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the facts set forth in the recitals of

this Resolution are found and declared to be true, and therefore the City Council
approves Variance ( VA06- 001) consistent with the plans dated June 1, 2009 and

incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A except as noted herein, to authorize the
proposed 12 -unit condominium residential development on approximately 0. 73 gross
acres of land located at 8137 Cascio Court, Lemon Grove, California. The approval of

this variance shall be subject to the following conditions: 

A. Prior to construction of the project: 

1) Obtain approval of Planned Development Permit ( PDP04- 002). 

2) Obtain all improvement permits and building permits associated with
constructing PDP04- 002. 

3) The plans submitted for permits shall show compliance with all

appropriate Building and Municipal Codes. 

4) The plans submitted for permits shall show substantial compliance to

Exhibit A of the approved Variance request. 

B. Obtain certification from the Community Development Director prior to occupancy
that the following has been completed: 

1) All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved

Variance plans dated June 1, 2009 except as noted herein has been

constructed in conformance to the plans and in accordance with

appropriate Lemon Grove Municipal Code provisions. 

C. This Variance request shall expire two years from the effective date to be

determined upon City Council approval ( or such longer period as may be
approved by the Planning Commission or the City Council of the City 'of Lemon
Grove prior to said expiration date) unless construction or use in reliance on this

planned development permit has commenced prior to said expiration date. 

11 - 



Attachment B

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California on
August 18, 2009 by the following vote: 

COUNCILMEMBERS AYES

Mary Teresa Sessom xx

NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT

Mary England xx

George Gastil xx V

Jerry Jones 1': xx

Jerry Selby. l
xx

Attest: 

GAANSUSAN "" RCIA, City Clerk

MSA' sESSOM, Mayor

CERTIFICATIONOFCITY CLERK

I, Susan Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Lemon Grove, California do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2892 duly passed and
adopted by the City Council of said City on the date and by the vote therein recited. 

SU SAN GARCIA, "City Clerk

12- 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2893

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
PERMIT ( PDP04- 002) TO AUTHORIZE THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 12 -UNIT

CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 8137 CASCIO COURT

WHEREAS, Mr. Kevin Leon, on behalf of Center Hilltop Associates, filed a
complete application for a Planned Development Permit on June 1, 2009, to authorize a
12 -unit condominium and common area subdivision on 0. 73 gross acres of land located
at 8137 Cascio Court; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ( ND09- 

03) will be filed subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove
Planning Commission on July 27, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission also considered Variance VA06- 001 and
Tentative Map ( condominium) ( TM0047) associated with this Planned Development

Permit ( PDP04- 002); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission found that the proposed Planned
Development Permit ( PDP04- 002) complies with the findings of fact required to approve
this project pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 17. 28. 030( D) and

recommends approval to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on August 18, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is also considering Variance VA06-001 and
Tentative Map ( condominium) ( TM0047) associated with this Planned Development

Permit ( PDP04- 002); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following findings of fact, as
required by Section 17. 28.030( D) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code, can be made as
follows: 

1. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit this Council must find that
the development proposed in the plans and drawings which accompany the
application will be consistent with the objective of this Section. 

a) This Council finds that the design of this project is consistent with the
objectives of the Planned Development Permit section of the City of
Lemon Grove Municipal Code because the design of the development
utilizes modern site design techniques and conditions have been included
in the approval of this project to make it consistent with the requirements
of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code and to create a project which is
harmonious with the existing and potential development in the vicinity. 

2. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit, the Council must find that
the proposed location of this Planned Development is consistent with the

purposes of the Zoning District in which the subject property is located: 

13- 



Attachment B

a) This Council finds that the proposed project complies with the approved
Variance, or conditions have been included which require it to comply
with the requirements of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code for a
residential development of this type. 

3. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit, the Council must find that
the proposed development will comply with each of the applicable provisions of
the Zoning Ordinance including off- street parking, landscaping/ screening and
open space. 

a) This Council finds that' the proposed project complies with the approved
variance, or conditions have been included for this project to require it

comply with the Lemon Grove Municipal Code requirements relating to
off-street parking, screening and landscaping. The open space

requirements have been reduced pursuant to VA06- 001. 

4. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit the Council must bind that
existing street and systonas for water, drainage and sewer which are Intended to
serve the proposed development are aderl,uate or will be made adequate to
accommodate the additional burdens imposed by the proposed project. 

a) This Council finds that this project will provide adequate systems for
water, drainage and sewer to serve the proposed development and does

not impose unacceptable burdens on the existing systems. 

5. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit the Council must find that
the combination of dwelling types, lot size, and uses in the development will
complement each other and will harmonize with existing and proposed land uses
in the vicinity; the planned open space, parking and recreation facilities are
consistent with the anticipated population of the development. 

a) This Council finds that the design of the proposed project, as conditioned, 

will be harmonious with the surrounding land uses and open space is
adequate for the anticipated population of the development. 

6. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit, the. Council must farad that
the development ahaill produce an environment of sustained desirability and
stability, barmonbus with the character of the surrounding area and consistent
with the objectives of the Lemon Grove General Plan and rttac,a applicable plans

or policies adopted by the City Council. 

a) This Council finds that the proposed development, as conditioned, will
harmonize with the land uses in the area of the subject property and is
consistent with the applicable objectives of the Lemon Grove General
Plan. 

7. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit, the Council must find that

the proposed development is sensitive to the site' s topography, minimizes

grading and avoids disruption to hillsides. 

a) This Council finds that the project site has been previously disturbed and

that the proposed grading for the site provides for appropriate access and
building area and the maximum amount of open space possible, and
impacts to the existing topography on adjacent properties and road
systems is minimized. 

14- 



Attachment B

8. In order to approve this Planned Development Permit the Council must find that
the proposed use will not become detrimental to the public interest, health, 

safety, convenience or general welfare. 

a) This Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will

be made to comply; with all of the applicable requirements of the City
Zoning Ordinance reWing to public safety and no such detriment should
occur. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the facts set forth in the recitals

of this Resolution are found and declared to be true, and therefore the City Council of
the City of Lemon Grove approves Planned Development Permit PDP04- 002
consistent with the plans, dated received June 1, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference as Exhibit A except as noted herein, to authorize the proposed development
of a 12 -unit condominium development consisting of four, two- story buildings, 
including landscaping, screening, and off-street parking on approximately 0. 73 gross
acres of vacant land located at 8137 Cascio Court., Lemon Grove California, The
approval of this project shall be subject to the following conditions: 

A. Prior to the issuance of the building permit for the facility authorized by this
Planned Development Permit the applicant shall: 

1) Obtain City Council approval of Variance VA06- 001. 

2) Submit construction_ plans that show all physical elements of the
proposed project consistent with Exhibit A dated June 1, 2009 except as
noted herein. 

3) ' rtle constructlon pfaras stall show compliance with the appllcaNe
provisions of they 2007 Califo oia flN. 11lding Code ( which adopts tine 2006
0itdrnatlonal Building Code, Uniform Pluming Code, 2006, Uniform
Mechanical Code, 2006 National Electrical Code, Fire Code and TWe 24
Energy requirements). 

4) The construction plans shall show all garage doors equipped with an

automatic roll -up garage door and remote control. This requirement shall
also be included in the Conditions, Covenants and Restrictions ( CC& Rs). 

5) Submit for Community Development Director approval, a detailed

landscape and irrigation plan for the entire project. Provide reference

sheets for the grading and landscape erosion control plans ( label these
sheets " Reference Only"). Said landscape plan shall comply with the
requirements of Section 17. 24. 050( B) of the Lemon Grove Municipal
Code. The landscape plan shall be in substantial conformance to the
approved landscape concept plan. The landscape plan shall be

incorporated into the CC& Rs and landscaping and irrigation shall be
maintained by the Homeowners' Association ( HOA). The plans shall

show: 

a. Plantings are drought tolerant materials with water conserving

irrigation. 

b. Construction details, materials and finishes for the trash and
recycle enclosure. A 10' x 30' concrete apron shall be located in
front of this enclosure. 

c. Surface improvements including but not limited to the design and

15- 



Attachment B

locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, botanical and
common names of all plant materials, number, size and location of

all plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back- flow
devices; and soil amendments. 

d. Landscape materials within the sewer easement shall be to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

e. Show all safety railings and construction details for retaining walls. 

6) The building plans for the proposed condominium units shall include one
copy of the sample exterior building materials and colors to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

7) The project plans shall show balconies as illustrated on Exhibit A with the

exemption of north facing balconies on the northern most buildings. 

8) Prior to the issuance of the building permits for the proposed dwelling
units, the applicant shall submit an acoustical analysis of the proposed

building plans that shows compliance with the interior noise level
requirements of Califomia Building Code Title 24. 

9) Submit plans to show each dwelling unit and the carport in the
development include the required automatic fire suppression sprinkler

system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

10) Obtain sewer permits and pay capacity fees for 12 units. 

11) A fire hydrant shall be installed to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. A

note shall be placed on the construction plans stating that the hydrant
shall be installed and in service prior to construction with combustible

materials. A final inspection by the Fire Department shall be required to
confirm compliance with this requirement. 

B. Prior to obtaining occupancy and/ or final inspection for the facility authorized by this
Planned Development Permit the applicant shall comply with the following: 

12) Request final inspection approval from appropriate City Departments. 
The payment of the Parkland Dedication fee shall be paid for each

dwelling unit prior to requesting a final inspection. 

13) All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light

downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining
premises. 

14) Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

15) The private driveway is to be designated as a Fire Lane. Fire lanes ( 20
feet clear with no parking) and fire lane markings shall be provided to the
satisfaction of the Lemon Grove Fire Department along the private

vehicular driveway within the project. The fire lane will be designated per
City Fire Department standards and shall be marked and posted " No
Parking -Fire Lane" and the curb shall be painted red to the satisfaction of
the Fire Department. A final inspection by the Fire Department shall be
required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to the

construction with combustible materials and final occupancy. 

16- 



Attachment B

16) All access roadways and driveways shall maintain a minimum vertical

clearance of 13'- 6" to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

17) Install a standard street sign for Cascio Court to the satisfaction of the

City Engineer. 

18) Install property identification signs on- site near both entry drives that
prohibit the unauthorized use of the private parking and driveway areas to
the satisfaction of the Community Development Director, 

C. Upon certification by the Community Development Director for occupancy or
establishment of use allowed by the Planned Development Permit of this project, 
the following shall apply: 

1) Comply with all of the Conditions of Section A of this resolution and the
requirements of TM0047, as applicable. 

2) All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all
times. The landscaping located on the subject property shall be
maintained in a healthy and growing condition at all times. All on- site & 
off- site landscaped areas shall be planted and irrigated by a permanent
irrigation system. 

3) The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the Fire
Code to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

4) The project shall maintain water quality requirements as outlined in the
Water Quality Documents. 

5) The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California
Building Code. 

6) The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates or walls is
prohibited. 

7) All screening fences, walls and landscaping on the subject property shall
be maintained in good condition at all times. 

8) All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light

downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining
premises. 

9) All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely
matches the color of the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the

discovery of the graffiti. 

10) All dumpsters, recycling and refuse containers shall be maintained at all
times. 

11) No parking is permitted within the private drive aisle ( driveway) or
designated fire lane area at any time. 

12) All structures on the subject property shall comply with all of the
appropriate requirements of the Uniform Building Code, Mechanical
Code, National Electric Code and Fire Code to the satisfaction of the City
of Lemon Grove Building Official and Fire Chief. 

13) All aspects of the project shown on the approved plans dated June 1, 

2009 shall be maintained in substantially the same condition as indicated

mrm



Attachment B

and shall be constructed in accordance with all appropriate City of Lemon
Grove Municipal Codes and Ordinances. 

14) Rooftop mechanical equipment, including but not limited to heating, air
conditioning and ventilating equipment, shall be screened so that it may
not be seen from the level of adjacent streets and sidewalks. 

15) The terms and conditions of this Planned Development Permit shall be

binding upon the permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations
having an interest in the property subject to this Planned Development
Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns

of each of them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and
districts. 

D. This Planned Development Permit expires two years from the effective date ( or such

longer period as may be approved by the Planning Commission or the City Council
of the City of Lemon Grove prior to said expiration date) unless all requirements of
this Planned Development Permit have been met prior to said expiration date. 

18- 



Attachment B

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California on
August 18, 2009 by the following vote: 

COUNCILMEMBERS AYES

Teresa Sessom Xx

NOES ABSTAIN

Mary

ABSENT

Mary England Exx

George Gastil

Jerry Jones Exx El- 
JerrySelby Lxx

SESSM„ Mayoo° 

Attest: 

S116AN GARCIA, City Clort

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK

I, Susan Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Lemon Grove, California do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2893 duly passed and
adopted by the City Council of said City on the date and by the vote therein recited. 

SUSAN GARCIA, City Clerk

W&I'm



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO, 2894

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 
CALIFORNIA APPROVING TENTATIVE MAP ( CONDOMINIUM TM0047) TO

SUBDIVIDE A 0. 73 ACRE PARCEL INTO 12 CONDOMINIUM LOTS AND COMMON
AREA LOCATED AT 8137 CASCIO COURT

WHEREAS, Mr. Kevin Leon, on behalf of Center Hilltop Associates, filed a
complete application for a Tentative Map request on June 1, 2009, to authorize a 12 -unit
condominium and common area subdivision on 0. 73 gross acres of land located at 8137
Cascio Court; and, 

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ( ND09- 

03) will be filed subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove
Planning Commission on July 27, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered Planned Development Permit
PDP04- 002) and Variance VA06- 001 associated with this Tentative Map ( condominium) 
TM0047); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission found that the proposed Tentative Map
complies with the findings of fact required to approve this project pursuant to
Development Code Section 16. 16. 400 and recommends approval to the City Council; 
and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on August 18, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is also considering Planned Development Permit
PDP04- 002) and Variance VA06- 001 associated with this Tentative Map ( condominium) 
TM0047); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and
recommendations of the Planning Commission, Community Development Department, 
City Engineer, and the Lemon Grove Fire Department with respect thereto and has
determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to insure that the
subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, rules, 

standards, and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16. 12. 280 of the Lemon Grove Municipal

Code, the City Council finds that it is impractical in this particular case for this
condominium subdivision to conform fully to the requirements of the Subdivision
Ordinance. However, waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found to

conform to the purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision Ordinance of
the Lemon Grove Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the design of the proposed
subdivision and recommends the following waivers and incentives required pursuant to
California Government Code Section 65915 of certain requirements of the City
Subdivision Ordinance in order to accommodate the proposed condominium map
pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16. 12. 280: 

20- 



Attachment B

1. A waiver of Section 17. 16. 040D1 ( Minimum Lot Area) and Section

16. 12. 2206 ( Design Standards) to allow the proposed condominium lots to
have less than 6, 000 square feet or 1, 500 square feet per dwelling unit of
minimum lot area; and

2. A waiver of Section 17. 16. 040D3 ( Minimum Lot Width and Depth) and
16. 12. 220D ( Design Standards) to allow the proposed condominium lots to
have less than the 60 foot minimum width and 90 foot minimum lot depth; and

3. A waiver of Section 17. 16. 040D4 ( Minimum Yards) to allow the proposed
condominium lots to have reduced minimum yards as specified in the
Development Code to allow reduced yards between the separately owned
parcels; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Tentative Map complies with the
findings of fact required to approve this project pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal
Code Section 16. 16. 400 as follows: 

1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed Improvements are not likely to
cause substantial environmental damage or substantoatly and avoidably injure
fish or wildlife or their habitat because the project is located in an urban infill
area and the development will not cause any environmental damage; and

2. The proposed Tentative Map ( TM0047) is consistent with the Residential
Medium/ High density ( up to 29 dwelling units per net acre) land use
designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan; and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development
because public utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause
serious public health problems; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements does not conflict. with
easements acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of
property within the proposed subdivision as defined under California
Government Code Section 66474; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map comply with
the requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the City of Lemon
Grove Subdivision Ordinance except as specifically waived by the Planning
Commission and the City Council; and

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove. 

SECTION 1. Certifies the Mitigated Negative Declaration ( ND09- 03) that TM0047
would have no significant effect on the environment as mitigated; and

SECTION 2. Grants waivers of certain requirements of the City Subdivision
Ordinance as enumerated in this resolution in order to accommodate this
condominium subdivision; and

SECTION 3. Approves Tentative ' Map TM0047 consistent with plans received
June 1, 2009 Incl Incorporated Herein by referetic,e as Exhibit A, except as
noted herein, subject to the following conditions which shall be complied with
before a final mzip thereof is approved t'a'y the City Cocincll and filed with the
County Recorder of San Diego County. 

21 - 



Attachment B

A. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY GRADING OR IMPROVEMENT PERMIT, THE
SUBDIVIDER SHALL: 

1) Obtain approval of Variance ( VA06- 001) and Planned Development
Permit ( PDP04- 002). 

2) Submit a private grading plan ( showing existing and proposed on- site
improvements including, but not limited to, paving, grading, utilities, 
retaining walls, and drainage features). The plan shall be prepared in

accordance with the City' s standard requirements by a Registered Civil
Engineer. All necessary measures for prevention of storm water pollution
and hazardous material run- off to the public storm drain system from the

proposed parking lot or development shall be implemented with the
design of the grading. 

3) Submit a preliminary soils engineering ' report for the Engineering
Department' s review prior to issuance of grading and improvement
permits. The report shall address, at a minimum, items as stated in
Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 18. 08. 120. In addition to verifying

the tentative map soil stability survey report, the preliminary soils report
shall address the adequacy of the building pads, the maximum allowable
soil bearing pressure and the recommended minimum pavement
structural sections for the proposed streets, the parking areas; and the
driveways. 

4) Submit a public improvement plan showing the proposed and existing

improvements within the public right of way. The plan shall be prepared in
accordance with the City's standard requirements by a Registered Civil
Engineer. The improvement plan submittal must include a sight distance

calculation, prepared and signed by a Registered Civil Engineer, verifying
that the proposed design provides adequate stopping sight distance for
vehicles traveling on Hilltop Drive past the proposed retaining wall at the
entry driveway, and for adequate decision sight distance for vehicles
entering and exiting the site. Along Cascio Court, drainage patterns
indicate flow along the curbline, thus a full curb and gutter section ( per
SDRSD G- 2) will be required as opposed to the G- 1 curb section. This

revision from the tentative map design shall be shown on the engineered
improvement plans. 

5) The private road to the proposed project ( Cascio Court) and the driveway
must be a minimum of 20 feet wide, paved with an all weather surface

and must be able to support the imposed load of a fire - apparatus at
75, 000 lbs. Fire lane markings will be required to the satisfaction of the
Fire Department. These roads must be designated as ' Emergency

Access Easements" on the Final Map. 

6) Obtain a Right-of-way Permit from the Engineering Department for all
improvement work within the public right- of-way; obtain a grading permit
for the proposed grading construction on private property. 

7) Install gas, electric, sewer, water lines, and any other below surface
utilities before installing any concrete curb, gutters, sidewalks, and street
surfacing. 



Attachment B

8) The project must maintain water quality requirements as outlined in the
Water Quality Documents. 

9) Provide letters from the serving utility companies stating that
arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to serve all
parcels created. No letter will be required from the telephone company. 

10) Install new utility distribution facilities underground, including cable
television lines, within the boundaries of any new subdivision or within

any half street abutting a new subdivision. Coordinate with the necessary
cable television operators for the installation of such facilities. 
Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, concealed

ducts, and other facilities necessarily appurtenant to such underground
utilities and street lighting systems may be placed above ground unless
directed otherwise by the City Engineer. All proposed structures on the
subject property shall connect to the utility systems via underground
systems. 

11) Execute a covenant agreeing not to oppose the formation of future utility
undergrounding districts that may affect this property. 

12) Construct, at developer' s cost, a street lighting system conforming to City
standards. 

13) Prepare construction plans and construct drainage facilities in accordance

with the Drainage and Hydrology Study prepared for the project and to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

14) Ensure that on- site drainage is in compliance with the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit. 

15) Submit plans showing the size, type, and location of the required fire
hydrant, minimum water supply pipe size, minimum turn radii and road
width and all other requirements of the Fire Department. A final

inspection by the Fire Department shall be required to confirm compliance
with this requirement. 

16) The contractor/permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be
responsible for controlling dust created by its grading operation or
activities at all times. 

17) Grant to the appropriate agency by recorded documents all required
easements, specifically all on- site water main easements that serve fire
hydrants, or furnish a letter from said agency that none is required. 

PRIOR TO THE RECORDATION OF THE FINAL MAP, THE SUBDIVIDER
SHALL: 

17) Submit a private Street Maintenance Agreement for the future repair and
rehabilitation of the Cascio Court within the limits of ownership prior to

recordation of the final map. The City will provide the template for the
agreement. 

18) Submit a final soils engineering report for the Engineering Department' s
review following grading activities but prior to final inspection for grading
permits. The report shall address, at a minimum, items as stated in
Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 18. 08. 800. 



Attachment B

19) Submit a pad certification and compaction report to the City for review
and approval prior to applicant request for final inspectio6 on the grading
permit. 

20) Dedicate street right- of-way to the City as shown on the tentative map. 
Specifically, dedicate sufficient right-of-way to complete a 28' half -width
for Hilltop Drive. The City will prepare a " Grant Deed — Right -of -Way
Dedication" Agreement for signature prior to recordation of the final map. 

21) Submit a secured agreement to construct the public improvements prior

to either recordation of the final map or building permitting. A cost
estimate for work proposed within the public right of way shall be
submitted with the plans. Subsequent to approval of the cost estimate, 

the City will prepare the improvement agreement for signature by the
owner. A security equal to the approved cost estimates shall be posted
with the public improvement agreement, 

22) A portion of the proposed retaining wall is within the dedicated public
right-of-way along Hilltop Drive. Prior to recordation of the final map, the
owner will be required to submit an Encroachment Maintenance and
Removal Agreement for this wall. 

23) In order to provide permanent access for sanitation maintenance

vehicles, a permanent easement for right of entry must be granted to the
Lemon Grove Sanitation District for both the upper and lower parking lot

areas. This right of entry easement must be shown on the final map. 

24) The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in
substantial conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to
the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

25) Submit a title report for the property no more than 60 days in advance of
the recordation of the Final Condominium Map to the City Engineer for
review. The final map shall identify any easements indicated within the
Title Report. 

26) Create a HOA to manage the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions
CC& Rs). Said CC& Rs shall be submitted to the City for review prior to

State of California ( Department of Real Estate) final approval and shall be

written to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director and the
City Engineer. The CC& Rs shall include the requirements of the SUSMP
approved for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program

Coordinator, City Engineer and Community Development Director and all
other HOA requirements and shall be recorded concurrent with the final

map and shall include but not limited to: 

a. Best Management Practices ( BMPs) and a Private Driveway and
Drainage Maintenance Agreement. The maintenance and the

preservation of the drainage facilities shall be included in the CC& Rs. 

The developer, current and future property owners shall adhere to the
recommendations of the Water Quality Documents and CC& Rs
approved for this project. 

b. The HOA shall provide on-going maintenance of landscaping and
irrigation of planting areas, parkways, and open space areas. The



Attachment B

CC& Rs shall show private on -grade open space areas ( near individual
units) and designate unit responsibilities for maintenance. 

c. Immediate removal of graffiti is required. 

d. All garage doors shall be automatic roll -up type doors and equipped
with remote control devices. 

f. All landscaping and other exterior site improvements on- site shall be
well maintained at all times in substantially the same condition
as approved in accordance with the approved site and landscape plans. 

g. Requirements to maintain the drainage facilities and any access
easements (where they occur) on the property. 

h. Identify and implement the BMtPs Identified in the Standard Urban
tormwaler Mitigation Plan ( SLJSMP) prepared for this project and

state chat tine developer, current : and future property owners shall
comply with the recommendations of the SUSMP prepared for this
project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program Coordinator
and the City Engineer. 

i. Funding of the long term maintenance of all facilities required by the
Water Quality documents shall be included in the annual HOA budget. 

j. A long- term operation and maintenances program ( OMP) will be a
requirement and the responsibility of the HOA to maintain. Funding for
the program is required to be accounted for 11i the annual budget of the
HOA. 

k. Routine maintenance of all mechanical ventilation, heating and cooling
equipment is required to ensure adequate air quality is achieved

because of the proximity to SR94. 

27) The CC& Rs shall cteariy establish I'he responsibilities of the homeowners
with regard to the csonlinu' ing rnafntenarica and preservation of the
buildings, driveways, private street and drainage facilities ( where they
occur), slopes, landscaping and irrigation. Said CCRs sl°call specifically
limit the number of dwelling units to 12 units to be built on the site.., shall
give the City the right but not the duty to enter the premises to do
maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to
maintain said facilities, and shall prohibit amendments to the CC& Rs

without express written consent of the City. 

28) The developer shall execute an agreement Imposing restrictions on real

property with the t.einon Grover Community Development agency, in
which the Owner agreas tol reserve one (" t) condominium ( hereinafter
r,atled the " affordable units") In the Project exclusively for stale to arad/ Dr

occupancy by moderate Income houseliolds whose annual incorve does
not exceed the established California moderate Income for the year of
building permit issuance. The affordable unit shall be maintained for 45
years for an owner -occupied dwelling unit and 55 years for a rental unit. 
These covenants or restrictions shall be recorded in the office of the
counl.y recorder for the unit of real property subject to this. subdivision in a
form accoptabie to the City Attorney. Notwithstanding any other provision
of law, Oiese covenants or restrictions shall run with the land and shall be



Attachment B

enforceable, against the original owner and successors in interest, by the

agency or the community. This condition may be modified as required by
the Lemon Grove Community Development Agency and the Community
Development Department prior to the recordation of the final map

29) The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with two reproducible
Mylar copies of the final map for recordation. 

C. The protection of the public interest requires that the subdivider, contractors, 
builders, lot or parcel owners, and other person, firms and corporations concerned

with the development of said subdivision conform to the following standards, and

all permits required by the City of Lemon Grove will be issued pursuant to such
standards: 

30) All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from the Helix
Water District. 

31) All buildings constructed in this subdivision shall be connected to the
public sewer system of the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

32) Future construction on the site shall comply with applicable provisions of

the 2007 California Building Code ( which adopts the 2006 International
Building Code, 2006 Uniform Mechanical Code, Uniform Plumbing Code, 
2006 National Electrical Code & title 24 Energy Requirements). 

33) Sewer and water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of
this subdivision. 

34) Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to

prevent ponding and/ or storage of surface water and shall be in
compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

NPDES) permit to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

D. This approval of this tentative map will expire two years from the date of
approval. The final map or maps conforming to this conditionally approved
tentative map shall be filed with the City Council in time so that said Council may
approve the map before this approval expires unless prior to that date the
Planning Commission or City Council subsequently grants a one-year time
extension for obtaining such approval of said final map or maps as provided by
the City Subdivision Ordinance. 

E„ The subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the City and
any agency thereof, and/ or any of its officers, employees, and agents from any
and all claims, actions, or proceedings against the City, or any agency or

instrumentality thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents to attack, set
aside, void, or annul, an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, advisory agency, appeal board, or legislative body, including actions
approved by the voters of the City, concerning the project, City shall promptly
notify the applicant/ subdivider of any claim, action, or proceeding brought within
this time period, and City shall further cooperate fully. If the City fails to promptly
notify the applicant/ subdivider of any such claim, action, or proceeding, or fails to
cooperate fully in the defense, the applicant/ subdivider shall not thereafter be
responsible to indemnify, defend, protect or hold harmless the City, any agency
or instrumentality thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents. 

26- 



Attachment B

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California on
August 18, 2009 by the following vote: 

COUNCILMEMBERS AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT

Mary Teresa Sessom [': X'X"J
Mary England xx

George Gastil

Jerry Jones .. xX.. . 

Jerry Selby

Y' E SfmSSOfwt„ Mayr

Attest: 

SEW A wCIA City Clerk

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK

I, Susan Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Lemon Grove, GaIllornia dry hereby
certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of Resolut' k)n No, 2894 du, dly passed and
adopted by the City Council of said City on the date and by the vette t'liare)n MCIte'df

i... USAN GARCIA, City Clerk

27- 



LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. F

Mtg. Date March 15, 2016

Dept. Public Works

Item Title: Acceptance of the Sewer Capital Improvement Project: Lining

Staff Contact: Mike James, Director of Public Works

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) accepting the Sewer Capital Improvement Project: Lining
as complete. 

Item Summary: 

On March 17, 2015, Nu Line Technologies, Inc. was awarded Sewer Capital Improvement Project: 

Lining ( Contract No. 2015- 01) with a bid amount of $ 189, 946.46 and a project budget ( including
construction inspection and contingency) not to exceed $ 280, 000. 

Since the project was awarded, there have been two change orders: Change Order No. 1 was

issued after the initial cleaning and video assessment. It was discovered that approximately 38
percent of the total linear footage was six inches in diameter rather than the eight -inches that was

indicated in the project drawings. Due to the difficulty and manpower that was needed to install the
smaller, six- inch liner, the contractor requested an increase of $ 50, 510. 00. Change Order No. 2

was issued for time and material changes at four locations, the deletion of two line items, and the

addition of one line item. The contractor requested a decrease of $ 1, 267. 34. The final project

budget, including inspection, totaled $ 278, 708. 66. 

On February 25, 2016, the City' s construction inspection consultant completed the final inspection
of the improvements and determined the work was completed per the contract specifications. 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution accepting the work as complete, 
authorize the City Manager to file a notice of completion with the County of San Diego, and
authorize staff to release the retention no sooner than thirty ( 30) days after the notice of completion
has been filed.: 

Fiscal Impact: 

Sanitation District funds were used to fund this project. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section 15304

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Ft Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft, 

Neighborhood meeting

1- 



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO.' 2016 -. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE SEWER

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT: LINING ( CONTRACT NO. 2015- 01) AS COMPLETE: 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2015, the City Council awarded the Sewer Capital
Improvement Project: Lining ( Contract No. 2015- 01) to NuLine Technologies, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, Two change orders in the total amount of $49, 242. 66 increased the original

contract price from $ 189, 946.46 to $ 239, 189. 12; and

WHEREAS, the final project cost of $ 278, 708.66 was allocated for this project from

Sanitation District funds; and

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2016, NuLine Technologies, Inc. completed the scope of
work as defined by the original contract and change orders; and

WHEREAS, Construction Inspection Consultants inspected all of the improvements and

determined that NuLine Technologies, Inc. fulfilled its contractual obligations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the :Sanitation District of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Accepts the work for the Sewer Capital Improvement Project: Lining ( Contract No. 
2015- 01) as complete; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager to file a notice of completion with the County of San
Diego; and

3. Authorizes City staff to release the retention no sooner than thirty ( 30) days after the
notice of completion is filed. 



LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. G

Mtg. Date March 1w5µw201IT6__ 
Dept. 

Public Works Item

Title: Amend the Design Contract for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation Project Staff

Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director Recommendation: 

Adopt

a resolution ( Attachment A) amending the design contract for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation
Project awarded to Dokken Engineering for an additional amount of $14, 531. Item

Summary: On

January 15, 2013, the Sanitation District Board (Board) adopted Resolution No. 254 awardinga design
contract to Dokken Engineering for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation Project. On

May 20, 2014, the Board authorized an amendment to the contract in the amount of $10, 450 to add

additional locations to the design. In November 2015, a change order to field verify and revise the
plans to reflect current conditions was authorized by the Interim City Manager in the amount of 7,

885. Since then, staff identified the need for potholing services to confirm the location of the surrounding
utilities in close proximity to the sewer lines proposed for rehabilitation. At staff' s request, 

Dokken Engineering provideda scope and fee for these additional services (Attachment B) 
for an amount not to exceed $14, 531. Staff

recommends that the Sanitation District Board adopt a resolution amending the design contract
for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation Project to include additional services for a total project cost

not to exceed $ 89, 466 (Attachment A). Fiscal

Impact: The

design contract cost will increase by $14, 531. The new contract total will not exceed $ 89, 466, Sufficient

funds are allocated from the sanitation district. Environmental

Review: Not

subject to review Categorical

Exemption, Section Public

Information: None  

Newsletter article Notice

published in local newspaper Attachments: 

A. 

Resolution B. 

Amended Scope of Work Negative

Declaration F-

11 Mitigated Negative Declaration Notice

to property owners within 300 ft. Neighborhood

meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT AMENDING THE DESIGN

CONTRACT FOR THE SEWER MAIN REHABILITATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, a design contract for sewer main rehabilitation was
awarded to Dokken Engineering under the Sanitation District' s Five -Year Capital Improvement
Program; and

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2014, the Board authorized an amendment to the contract in the
amount of $ 10, 450 to add additional locations to the design; and

WHEREAS, in November 2015, a Change Order to revise the plans and specifications

and a field verification was authorized by the Interim City Manager in the amount of $7, 885; and

WHEREAS, the design contract requires an amendment to add potholing services, and

WHEREAS, the Sanitation District finds it in the public interest to amend the contract for

the Sewer Main Rehabilitation Project awarded to Dokken Engineering. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sanitation District of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Modifies the scope of work for the Sewer Main Rehabilitation Project design contract

awarded to Dokken Engineering; and

2. Amends the total project design budget in an amount not -to -exceed $ 89,466; and

3. Authorizes the Executive Director or designee to execute and manage said contract. 



Attachment B

February 25, 2016

Jeremiah J. Harrington

Assistant Engineer

City of Lemon Grove

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Reference: City of Lemon Grove Sewer Improvement Project — Potholing

Dear Mr. Harrington: 

This letter provides a scope of services and fee for additional services to provide the City with potholing

and engineering design services to incorporate the potholing results into the contract documents. The
services requested under this amendment supplement, and do not overlap with, services authorized
under the original project scope or amendment 1. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The following detailed scope of services describes the specific tasks to be performed and deliverables
that will be provided. 

Potholing Services
IEC is including a proposal from Underground Solutions to perform the potholing work. The scope of the

potholing work includes submitting an application package including traffic control plans to the City for
obtainment of an encroachment permit ( assumed permit fee is waived), calling USA Digalert to perform

utility markouts, staging and maintaining traffic control, vacuum excavations for 10 pothole locations, 
backfilling, compacting and patching pothole locations with permapatch/ rapid set, mark each location
with PK nails and paint for future survey and preparation of a subsurface utility report with data, photos

and pothole locations on a map. The pothole locations are as shown on the attached map. Potholing
services do not include survey of pothole locations. 

IEC will incorporate the pothole results into the plans including creating a pothole table indicating

potholed points and revising the mapped utilities to conform to potholed locations and depths. The

existing contract documents do not incorporate horizontal control and vertical control has been
provided for select manholes. The pothole locations will be input as relative to the existing sewer by
measurements done on site and visual correlation with surface improvements. The incorporation of

pothole results does not include horizontal or vertical redesign of existing facilities. Following
incorporation of the pothole results IEC will submit revised plans to the City for review and will attend a

meeting at the City to discuss results. 

FEE ESTIMATE
A breakdown of the scope and fee is attached,. 

5675 Ruffin Road, Suite 2,` 0, San Diego, CA 92:123 W re[ e: 858, 5' 14, 8377 Fax: 858. 514 8608 N yivrmw. r9arlckeD- tecigiureerirtg. corn. 



Attachment B

Jeremiah J. Harrington

City of lemon Grove
February 25, 2016

Page 2 of 2

We propose to complete this work on a time and materials basis at a total cost not to exceed $ 14, 531. 

This brings the total requested project budget to $ 89, 466. 

Sincerely, 

Robert S. Weber, PE '" John Klemun4 PE
Senior Project Manager Regional Manager

Infrastructure Engineering Corporation Dokken Engineering

CC: Jamie Fagnant, PE



FEE ESTIMATE

DOKXEN ENGINEERING

City of Lemon Grove Sower Capital Improvement Project - Amendment 2

Fm, 11 " A u' bw 6 gnu' Lemon Gm ny c A uim A2 R%" V " T  2, 2 S- 2 0 2

ask, WW,%k Xmcx jjp" rm I H w bun O:Nn 0 Cwt
Subcontract

C' W
F" gnaw)' 

5, d

M000 Z; M0 UU

P0, 94v" 4111 S14ni

W so

1, 

leq. e. tnxra ti d 7 Sb LY A2 Sll tU

TOTAL NOT- rO- FYC, P' YID FFF,• 14, 531

Fm, 11 " A u' bw 6 gnu' Lemon Gm ny c A uim A 2 R%" V " T  2, 2 S- 2 0 2



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. H

Mtg. Date .... March 15, 2016

Dept. : Development Services ( Planning Division) 

Item Title: : Request for Qualifications — Preparation of CEQA Compliance Documents for

the General Plan Update

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

Authorize the release of a Request for Qualifications ( Attachment B) to select a consultant to

prepare the required California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) compliance documents for
the General Plan Update.; 

Item Summary: 

Staff has drafted a Request for Qualifications ( RFQ) ( Attachment B) for City Council
consideration. The intent of the RFQ is to identify qualified consultants in the preparation of
required environmental documents, in accordance with CEQA, for the City' s General Plan Update
expected adoption October 2016). Staff anticipates either a Program Environmental Impact

Report ( PEIR) or an update to the City' s Master Environmental Impact Report ( MEIR) will be
required. Prior to presenting the RFQ for City Council input, staff sought comments from Claudia
Tedford, Principal, with CityPlace Planning who is contracted to assist the City in its General Plan
Update. 

The staff report ( Attachment A) provides a brief overview of the RFQ and the forthcoming
process. Staff recommends that the RFQ be released., 

Fiscal Impact: 

The General Plan Update has a budget of $ 150, 000 for FY15/ 16, which is funded from the General

Fund. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Draft Request for Qualifications

C. Sample Professional Services Contract

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. H

Mtg. Date March

m15, 
2016; _ 

Item Title: : Request for Qualifications — Preparation of CEQA Compliance Documents

for the General Plan Update

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director

Discussion: 

Staff has drafted a Request for Qualifications ( RFQ) for City Council consideration. The intent

of the RFQ is to identify qualified environmental consultants ( or consultant teams) with expertise
and experience in drafting environmental documents for General Plan updates to ensure
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) and the 2003 State of

California General Plan Guidelines. 

Staff anticipates either a Program Environmental Impact Report ( PEIR) or an update to the

City' s Master Environmental Impact Report ( MEIR) will be required. A PEIR may be faster and
less expensive and can analyze the General Plan Update as one project and a MEIR evaluates

cumulative impacts and is intended to streamline the later review of future projects that comply
with the updated General Plan. Staff' s goal is to strategize with potential consultants on CEQA

compliance alternatives, identify updates needed within the 1996 General Plan MEIR, identify a
scope of work for CEQA compliance for the General Plan Update, and contract with a

consultant that can prepare the necessary documents expeditiously, at a low or reasonable
cost, and with the community' s best interests in mind, especially as it relates to future
development. 

Prior to presenting the RFQ for City Council input, staff sought comments from Claudia Tedford, 
Principal, with CityPlace Planning and who is contracted to assist the City in the preparation of
its General Plan Update. 

The Draft RFQ outlines the scope of work and selection process in detail. 

Staff will begin the selection process immediately and then conduct interviews with selected
firms. Based on its evaluation, staff will present a recommendation to the City Council at the
April 19, 2016 meeting. A sample professional services contract is attached. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the release of a Request for Qualifications to
select a consulting firm to prepare the required CEQA compliance documents for the General
Plan Update. 



Attachment B

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

CEQA COMPLIANCE DOCUMENTS FOR

THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE

City of Lemon Grove
Development Services Department

Planning Division

rv5_ 



Attachment B

RELEASE DATE: March 16, 2016

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

CEQA COMPLIANCE DOCUMENTS FOR THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Release of RFQ: March 16, 2016

Responses Due: March 30, 2016, 4: 00 P. M. 

Interviews: April 6, 2016

Responses must include the following: 

o One original ( unbound) 

o Seven copies

o One electronic copy ( in PDF format) 

Addresses for Responses: 

Physical Address: City of Lemon Grove
Attention: David DeVries, Acting Development Services Director
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Email Address: ddevries@lemongrove. ca. gov

Proposed Award Date: April 19, 2016

Project Start Date: April 20, 2016

Contacts for Questions: David DeVries, Acting Development Services Director
ddevries@len, 1 rove. ca. aov
619) 825- 3812

Miranda Evans, Assistant Planner

mevans( blemongrove. ca. gov

619) 825- 3813

N



Attachment B

TABLE OF CONENTS

I. Intent .................................................... 1

II. Background ................... .......................,.. 1

III. Proposed Scope of Services.„ ...................„..,,.........,, 2

IV. Response to this Request for Qualifications .......................... 4

V. Selection Process .. . ........... . .............. ........ „ , .. „ .... 5

VI. Terms & Conditions ........................................... 5

M



Attachment B

I. Intent

The City of Lemon Grove ( the " City' s releases this Request for Qualifications ( RFQ) with the
intent to identify qualified environmental consultants ( or consultant teams) with expertise and
experience in drafting environmental documents expeditiously for General Plan updates to
ensure compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) and the 2003 State of
California General Plan Guidelines. 

Firms that provide a response to this RFQ may be invited to participate in an interview process
to further determine the organization' s capacity to provide the services sought by the City. 

II. Background

The City of Lemon Grove is located approximately ten miles east of downtown San Diego
among many communities in San Diego County. The City encompasses 3. 75 square miles and
is largely bounded by the SR -94 to the north and the SR -125 to the east. The population is

approximately 26, 000. The City is largely a single- family residential community built mostly in
the 40' s, 50' s, and 60' s. The City houses a quaint downtown, ' big box" commercial retailers, 
shopping centers, and surrounding these retailers are heavy commercial, light industrial, and

higher density residential land uses. The San Diego Orange Line bisects the City from the north
to the south and over half of the City is within a quarter mile a bus stop or trolley station. 

The City Council recently identified an update to the Lemon Grove General Plan as a priority
goal in FY15- 16. The City Council contracted with the Cal Poly San Luis Obispo ( SLO) Master
in City & Regional Planning ( MCRP) Design Studio on August 4, 2015 to provide public

outreach, analyze the existing General Plan, prepare a community profile, and draft a general
plan update. In January 2016, in order to build on the efforts of the SLO Design Studio, City
staff contracted with CityPlace Planning and Circulate San Diego to lead community workshops
related to the general plan and assist in the review of the SLO Design Studio' s draft general

plan. CityPlace Planning prepared the City' s 2014 Health & Wellness Element and the City of
Vista' s general plan ( adopted in 2012). 

The City' s General Plan was adopted in 1996. Subsequently, the City has adopted the 2001
Broadway Commercial Project Specific Plan, the 2005 Downtown Village Specific Plan, the
2006 Bikeways Master Plan, the 2010- 2020 Housing Element, and the 2014 Health & Wellness

Element. The following provides further detail on the preferred timeline for the adoption of the
updated general plan: 

Tuesday, February 16, 2016 at regularly scheduled City Council meeting — Public

outreach overview and review of draft ideas for considerations and feedback from City
Council ( completed). 

March 2016 — Request for Qualifications ( RFQ) for consultants to prepare EIR. 

Contract awarded ( in progress). 

February to June 2016 — General Plan update drafted by SLO Design Studio in
coordination with City staff, CityPlace Planning, and Circulate San Diego. Additional

contract work will be required after the SLO Design Studio team provides their final

deliverables ( in progress). 

June 2016 — Public hearing to review draft to City Council. Public Noticing
commences. 

M



Attachment B

July 2016 — Public hearing to review revised final draft to Council. CEQA and State

Clearinghouse noticing process commences. 

October 2016 — City Council adopts general plan update and certifies final EIR. 

It is worth noting that Rick Engineering Company has been contracted to prepare an expanded
Downtown Village Specific Plan and will include traffic and land use analysis of the expanded

downtown area. The preparation of the background report and technical analysis has

commenced and public outreach is expected to begin in March 2016. Staff intends to make the

expanded Downtown Village Specific Plan area into a Special Treatment Area for the draft

general plan ( placeholder) which will be replaced with the new Specific Plan with an expected

adoption date in mid to late 2017. 

III. Proposed Scope of Services

The RFQ seeks a consultant to complete six activities related to the preparation of CEQA
compliance documents for the General Plan Update. These activities include: 

1) Scoping — Identify appropriate environmental documents to obtain CEQA compliance for
the General Plan Update. The City desires the ability to streamline environmental review
of future projects in compliance with the General Plan Update as a result. Confirm

availability of existing data and obtain additional data needed. Draft required notices. 
Conduct scoping meeting and prepare record of comments. 

2) Prepare Technical Studies - Several technical analyses will need to be prepared to inform

both the development of portions of certain elements of the General Plan, and to

prepare the environmental analysis. It is anticipated the following technical studies
would be required, but other studies may be needed: transportation study, noise, 

greenhouse gas ( GHG) assessment, biological assessment, cultural and historic resource

assessment including Tribal consultation, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous

materials, and hydrology and water quality. The consultant' s response should identify
any additional studies that may be required. 

3) Prepare Draft CEQA Compliance Documents — Prepare the Draft in accordance with state

CEQA guidelines and State General Plan Guidelines and any applicable local or state
laws. The following tasks are anticipated: 

a. Complete all necessary analyses and related assessments including program
alternatives, cumulative impacts, discussion of Growth Inducing and Cumulative
impacts; 

b. In conjunction with the City, develop appropriate alternatives for analysis; 

c. Prepare a Mitigation, Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MMRP); 

d. Prepare GIS maps; 

e. Provide no less than two screenchecks for City staff review; 

f. Incorporate City staff comments into public review draft; 

g. Prepare a public review draft; and

h. Provide necessary copies and Notice of Completion for the State Clearinghouse, 

a



Attachment B

4) Resolve Concerns — If appropriate, amend the Draft based on public comments received

and resubmit for feedback. Continue this activity until appropriate concerns are
resolved. 

5) Prepare the Final CEQA Compliance Documents — Prepare response to comments, make

any needed revisions, Prepare a Statement of Overriding Considerations if needed, and
prepare a final document with technical appendices. 

6) Attend City Council certification hearings. 

IV. Response to this Request for Qualifications

Responses to this Request for Qualifications are due on March 30, 2016, 4:00 P. M. 

Responses must include one original ( unbound), seven copies and an electronic copy ( in PDF
format). The original and unbound copies should be mailed or delivered to the following
address: 

City of Lemon Grove
Attention: David DeVries, Acting Development Services Director
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

The electronic copy should be emailed to ddevries@lemongrove. ca. gov. 

The response should include the following information: 

1) Cover Letter — provide a letter, signed by an officer of the consulting firm authorized to
contractually bind the firm, stating that the firm is willing to enter into a mutually
developed agreement and final scope of work with the City of Lemon Grove. 

2) Project Personnel — identify the proposed project manager and support team. Include

key personnel from subcontractor or consulting partners. Include a one paragraph

summary resume for each key team member. 

3) Discussion of Similar Projects — identify similar projects that the consulting firm has
completed. For each project, include dates of involvement, status of the project, project

budget, and reference contact information ( name and title of contact with his/ her email
address and phone number). 

4) Rate Sheet — for prime consultant and all proposed subcontractors. 

5) Scope of Work & Project Strategy — relying on the proposed scope of work found in
Section III of this RFQ, provide the following: 

o Proposed method to accomplish work or Revised Scope of Work, 

o Project phases and tasks as available, 

o Project Timeline and Timing of each phase as available, 

o Deliverables if known, and

o Optional deductibles or add- ons. 

6) Additional Funding — identify if the consultant firm can secure additional funding to
augment the scope of work. If so, City staff will follow- up verbally regarding the
response. 

M



Attachment B

7) Insurance — provide evidence that the consulting firm can meet the City' s insurance
requirements identified in Section VI of this RFQ. 

V. Selection Process

City staff will evaluate responses to the RFQ, with a focus on: 

o Experience and technical competence ( specialized experience, record of performance, 

strength of key personnel and experience with similar local government agencies), 

o Proposed scope of work, method to accomplish work, deliverables and time schedules, 

o Quality and initiative demonstrated in responding to the RFQ, and

o Ability to provide deliverables and responses in a short turnaround time. 

City staff may conduct interviews with selected consulting firms or may ask for additional
information. Based on its evaluation, staff will finalize a scope of work with a selected firm and

will present an agreement for professional services to the Lemon Grove City Council for
consideration. 

VI. Terms & Conditions

1) Issuance of this RFQ does not commit the City to award a contract, or to pay any costs
incurred in the preparation of a response to this request. The City retains the right to
reject all submittals. Selection is also dependent upon the negotiation of a mutually
acceptable contract with the successful respondent and approval by the City Council. 
The contract shall be in the form attached to this proposal. 

2) The firm selected to perform the scope work shall be required to provide evidence of

public liability and property damage insurance with limits of not less than $ 1 million per

occurrence for all covered losses and not less than $ 2 million general aggregate for

injury to, or death of, one or more persons and/ or property damage arising out of a
single accident or occurrence, insuring against all liability of the City, the selected firm
and its authorized representatives, arising out of, or in connection with, the performance
of work pursuant to this RFQ. Professional liability insurance ( errors and omissions) 

shall be required of the firm in the minimum amount of $ 1 million dollars. The

insurance shall be provided at the sole cost and expense of the firm( s) selected. 

3) As a general rule, all documents received by the City are considered public records and
will be made available for public inspection and copying upon request. If you consider

any documents submitted with your response to be proprietary or otherwise

confidential, please submit a written request for a determination of whether the

documents can be withheld from public disclosure no later than ten ( 10) days prior to

the due date of your response. If you do not obtain a determination of confidentiality
prior to the submittal deadline, any document( s) submitted will be subject to public

disclosure. 

11- 



Attachment C

AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AND

CONSULTANT* 

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last

signature, by and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the
CITY"), and * CONSULTANT*, a professional environmental firm ( the

CONTRACTOR"). 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide professional
environmental services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is a professional

environmental firm and is qualified by experience, specific project knowledge, and ability to
perform the Project Manager and supporting environmental services desired by the CITY, and
the CONTRACTOR is willing to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS

FOLLOWS: 

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the
CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set
forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein. 

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will be

performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the CONTRACTOR. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONTRACTOR will perform services for the

preparation and certification of California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Compliance

Documents for the Genaral Plan Update as further defined in the attached Exhibit " A" beginning
on page 13. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services for the
preparation and certification of California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) 

Compliance Documents for the Genaral Plan Update consistent with the budget and

scope of work in Exhibit " A". The CONTRACTOR shall not rely on personnel of the
CITY for such services, except as authorized in advance by the CITY and as referenced
in Exhibit " A". The CONTRACTOR shall appear at meetings cited. 

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time to time
reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree to meet in good faith and
confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services. 

M



Attachment C

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION. 

David DeVries, Acting Development Services Director hereby is designated as
the Project Manager for the CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this
Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall assign a single professional analyst to act as the Project

Director, or Principal in Charge, to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the
progress and execution of this Agreement for the CONTRACTOR. * PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE* 

thereby is designated as the Project Director for the CONTRACTOR. 

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the CONTRACTOR shall

be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings shall include labor

classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The total cost for all

work described in Exhibit " A" shall not exceed the base amount of * TO BE DETERMINED*, 

without prior written authorization from the City' s Project Manager. Monthly invoices will be
processed for payment and remitted within thirty ( 30) days from receipt of invoice, provided that
work is accomplished consistent with Exhibit " A" as determined by and in the sole discretion of
the CITY. 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all books, documents, papers, employee time sheets, 

accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such

materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and

for three (3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the

CITY and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested. 

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. The duration of this agreement will be until November

30, 2016 unless an extension is otherwise mutually agreed upon and approved. 

6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. The Memoranda, Reports, 

Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR
for this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with
respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or

any phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. By accepting payment for completion, 
filing and delivering documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONTRACTOR discharges
the City of all of the City' s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement. 

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR hereby
assigns to the CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any
copyright in, and the right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, 

specifications or other work prepared under this agreement, except upon the CITY' s
prior authorization regarding reproduction, which authorization shall not be

unreasonably withheld. The CONTRACTOR shall, upon request of the CITY, execute

any further document( s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and disclaimer. 

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify, 
assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR' s

14- 



Attachment C

written work product for the CITY's purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives
and disclaims any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989
relating to intellectual property and artistic works. 

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications
prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from liability under Section 14
but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to
the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was
expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the performance of this

Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or
joint venturers with one another. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR' S

employees are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or
privileges of the CITY' s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemploy- 
ment, or workers' compensation insurance. 

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONTRACTOR and the

CONTRACTOR' s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement
to the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and
competence of the CONTRACTOR and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY. 
Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as
many employees, or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may deem necessary for the proper
and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR with its
subcontractor( s) shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this

Agreement. 

8. CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any
control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR' s employees
except as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR expressly agrees not to represent that the
CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR' s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner
agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its
agents, servants, and --employees are as to the CITY wholly _independent contractors and that
the CONTRACTOR' s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this
Agreement. 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONTRACTOR, in the performance

of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes
and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON

GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its

subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license

prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement. 

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that it

has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally
required to practice its profession. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that the

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR
to practice its profession. Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the

15- 



Attachment C

CONTRACTOR to provide the following documentation with the executed agreement will cause
delay in the agreement being executed by the City: 

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement; 

B. Taxpayer Identification Number (W- 9) 

http:// www. irs. gov/ pub/ irs- pdf/ fw9. pdf; 

C. IRS Letter of Non -Profit 501 ( c) ( 3) ( If Applicable); 

D. City Business License; 

11. STANDARD OF CARE. 

A. The CONTRACTOR, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall
perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the CONTRACTOR' S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in
similar locations. The CONTRACTOR shall take all special precautions necessary to protect
the CONTRACTOR' s employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the
nature of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site. 

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the

CONTRACTOR warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five ( 5) years

preceding, been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or
litigation proceedings concerning the CONTRACTOR' s professional performance or the
furnishing of materials or services relating thereto. 

C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unique products, 

treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the
CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, 

when no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the
CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products, 

materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are

reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence
under this sub -paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY' s later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable
substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or, 

when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. 
D. City' s Right to Terminate for Default. If the CONTRACTOR fails to perform or

adequetly perform any obligation required by this agreement, the CONTRACTOR' s failure
constitutes a Default. If the CONTRACTOR fails to satisfactorily cure a Default within ten ( 10) 
calendar days of receiving a written notice from the City specifying the nature of the Default, the
City may immediately cancel and/ or terminate this Agreement, and terminate each and every
right of the CONTRACTOR, and any person claiming any rights by or through the
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The rights and remedies of the City enumerated in this
paragraph are cumulative and shall not limit the City' s rights under any other provision of this
Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity, existing as of
the date of this Agreement or enacted or established at a later date, that may be available to the
City against the CONTRACTOR. 

12. NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS. The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate

against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical
condition. The CONTRACTOR will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed

without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, 
national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include but not be

limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for

16- 



Attachment C

training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places

available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting
forth the provisions of this non- discrimination clause. 

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to
the CONTRACTOR certain confidential information to enable the CONTRACTOR to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein. The CONTRACTOR shall treat all such information

as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its

own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The

foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that ( i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( ii) is, through no fault of

the CONTRACTOR, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( iii) is

already in the possession of the CONTRACTOR without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) 

has been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONTRACTOR by a third party, but only to
the extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third
party; or ( v) is disclosed according to law or court order. 

The CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or
other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the

prior written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall

comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation,. 

CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this
condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS, The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any
and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, and

subcontractors in the performance of services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR' s duty to
indemnify -under this section_ shall_ not include liability_ for damages for death or bodily injury to
persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence
or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees. 

CONTRACTOR' s indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this Agreement. The CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any payment, attorney' s
fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the

CITY ' s self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the

purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of
this Agreement. 

15. INSURANCE. The CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase

and maintain, and shaT require its subcontractors, when applicable, to purchase and maintain

throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies: 
A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum

limits of $ 1, 000, 000 per occurrence. 

M



Attachment C

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during
the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000, 000 combined single

limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall include hired and non -owned vehicles. 
C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $ 1, 000, 000

combined single limit per occurrence, covering all personal injury, bodily injury and property
damage arising out of its operation under this Agreement. Contractual liability shall include
coverage of tort liability of another party to pay for bodily injury or property damage to a third
person or organization. Contractual liability limitation endorsement is not acceptable. 

D. Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONTRACTOR' s employees. The
CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the provisions of the Worker's Compensation Insurance
and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the
California Government Code and all amendments thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts

or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and
employees from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and

judgments of every nature and description, including reasonable attorney' s fees and defense
costs presented, brought or recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or

volunteers, for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by
reason of any work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. That policy
shall provide a minimum of $ 1, 000, 000 of employer' s liability coverage, and the CONTRACTOR
shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the City
and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers, 
employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to
any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty ( 30) days prior written notice
to the CITY of cancellation or material change. 

F. If any required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than

occurrence" form, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years

after expiration of the term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement. 
G. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a

current policy holder' s alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII
according to the current Best' s Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is
approved by the CITY. 

H. Deductibles. All deductibles on any policy shall be the responsibility of the
CONTRACTOR

I. Specific Provisions Required. Each policy required under this section shall
expressly provide, and an endorsement shall be submitted to the City, that: 

1. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker' s compensation
policies, shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. The
CITY' s Additional Insured status must be reflected on additional insured endorsement form CG
2012, or equivalent, which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

2. The Policies cannot be canceled, non renewed or materially changed except
after thirty ( 30) calendar days prior written notice by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY by certified
mail, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY except for non- 
payment of premium, in which case ten ( 10) days notice will be provided. 

3. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that

these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY. 
If the CONTRACTOR does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all
times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided
herein. 

18- 



Attachment C

4. The CONTRACTOR may obtain additional insurance not required
by this Agreement

16. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising
from any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the
representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then
in that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out- of- 
court settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable
costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

17. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, 

or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego, 
California, in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association ( the "AAA"). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. 

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the
services provided under this Agreement, upon the City' s request, the CONTRACTOR, its

agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. The
CONTRACTORs assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professioal consultations, 

attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute
resolution and/ or litigation. 

18. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by
the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30 -day' s written notice to the
CONTRACTOR. During said 30 -day period the CONTRACTOR shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR may terminate this agreement upon thirty
30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its

obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices.. 
B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the

event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City' s satisfaction within a
ten ( 10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONTRACTOR in
connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to

perform services as directed by the CITY. 
C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of

Termination to the CONTRACTOR as provided for herein. 

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps, 

Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR, whether
paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and
the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages

caused the CITY by the CONTRACTOR' s breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written
material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6. 

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: 
1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONTRACTOR; ( 2) a reorganization of the

CONTRACTOR for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business

name or change in business status of the CONTRACTOR. 

F. The termination of the services shall be effective upon receipt of the notice by the
CONTRACTOR. 

M



Attachment C

19. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder

shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express
or the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or
sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of ( i) if personally
delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, ( ii) if sent by
overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, ( iii) if mailed

by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days ( ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the
State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like

facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv) if given by telegraph or
cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or ( v) if given by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other

communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons: 

To the CITY: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director
City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945- 1701

To the CONTRACTOR: * PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE* 

CONSULTANT* 

CONSULTANT ADDRESS* 

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in
this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice, 

demand, request or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty- 
eight (48) hours by letter mailed or delivered as specified in this Section. 

20. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS. 

During the term of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall not perform services of any kind for
any person or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE. The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or
material for the project in which the CONTRACTOR has a material financial interest, either

direct or indirect, without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONTRACTOR shall at all

times comply with the terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest
Code. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the

CONTRACTOR has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The

CONTRACTOR represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require
it to disqualify itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

If the CONTRACTOR violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these provisions in
this section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. Further, 

the violation subjects the Contractor to liability to the CITY for attorney fees and all damages
sustained as a result of the violation. 

If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of
the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest Code. 
Specifically, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

no



Attachment C

1, Go to www. fppc.ca. gov

2, Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

3. Completely fill out the form
4, Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts, 

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or

expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the
CONTRACTOR. 

21. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date or time period provided for in this
Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date
shall automatically be extended until 5: 00 p. m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday. 

B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the

same instrument. 

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this

Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, 
and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or
any provision hereof. 

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or
obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto. 

E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby

incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes. 
F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or

amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto. 
G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not

operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof. 
H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of California. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations
and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as

to the subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby. 

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal
bargaining strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the
opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors
as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this
Agreement, ( iv) each party and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this
Agreement, ( v) each party has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and
the rendering of such advice, and ( vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, 
or any portions hereof, or any amendments hereto. 

21- 



Attachment C

L. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this
Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement unenforceable, invalid, or
illegal. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE * CONSULTANT* 

Corporation — signatures of two corporate officers) 

Partnership — one signature) 

Sole proprietorship — one signature) 

By: 
Lydia Romero

City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

go

we

in
Name) 

Title) 

By. 
James P. Lough ( Name) 

City Attorney

Title) 



2. New Business

None. 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3.A__ 

Mtg. Date March 15, 2016

Dept. Development Services

Item Title: : Public Hearing for Review of the 2015 General Plan Annual Progress Report

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct a public hearing; and
2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) accepting the 2015 General Plan Annual Progress

Report and direct staff to submit the Report to the California State Office of Planning and
Research ( OPR) and the Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD). 

Item Summary: 

State law requires cities and counties to annually review, conduct a public hearing, and

authorize the submission of a General Plan Annual Progress Report ( Report) to the State. Staff

presents the 2015 Report ( Attachment B) for City Council review and consideration. The

Report includes the status of the General Plan implementation and the progress towards

meeting regional housing needs. In preparing the Report, staff distributed sections of the
Report to the appropriate City departments for review and input. Notable changes from the

2014 Report have been highlighted for convenience. Staff recommends that the City Council
conduct a public hearing and adopt the resolution ( Attachment A) accepting the Report and
directing staff to submit the Report to the Office of Planning and Research ( OPR) and the
Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) as more fully described in the
resolution. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section 15306

Public Information: 

None Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

B. 2015 General Plan Annual Progress Report

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, ACCEPTING THE

2015 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT AND DIRECTING STAFF TO SUBMIT

THE REPORT TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA IN ACCORDANACE WITH GOVERNMENT

CODE SECTION 65400( a)( 2) 

WHEREAS, Government Code 65400( a)( 2) mandates that all cities and counties

provide an annual report to their legislative bodies, the Office of Planning and Research ( OPR), 
and the Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) on the status of the

General Plan and the progress of its implementation, including the progress on meeting its
share of regional housing needs pursuant to Section 65584 and local efforts to remove
governmental constraints to the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing
pursuant to Government Code Section 65583( c)( 3); and

WHEREAS, the project has been found to be categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) per Section 15306 ( Class 6, Information Collection); and

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the
Lemon Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the 2015 General Plan Annual Progress
Report and finds that it accurately reflects the status of the City' s General Plan implementation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council; of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby..accepts the 2015 General Plan Annual Progress Report and directs
staff to submit the Report to the Office of Planning and Research ( OPR) and the Department
of Housing and Community Development ( HCD). 



F

a

r

r

r /

ilii

r

i  / 

c.

p, .,, 

r. . ¢

r

m

r
r

A. (

n

c

ai/ / 

a /' 

r / % 

ri// ` 

r  

r  `" 

rro  

c

a

rn & 

w

c..

l

pa (

c 

cam-/. 

ws  " 

rr° 
o

IL

Jr  

f

r

r5  

tl

u

nmtt

rl ( // 

r% 

3

r

l /  

I// 

r

i   / 

u ^.. 

4 ,

B

a : (

i ' ' 

m  ' 

w '

ca

r q, 

c

w

a.+ , % / 

r ,  

J / / % / 

J
p
µl  

x % 

r

ea

y  !

r  

a,„  

cu

w /  % 

i

r

C% % (/ / % 

r

i

r/ 

q  ' 

u'.

re

E

t

ar  

e, 

D `

a.  

a

F-. 

rsa =

n

Cl)  

ry

r 

r /

u ; /// 

i

j
Y

r

1  

II`/  ^

a

c:'. 

u

7

tx

a,  

roy ^.:  

a :  

c

1r

r

G /

l

0

f  %

l / [/ 

rf } 

ua '

e.

v +,

r

rx? .

n ' 

awr  

rcr

I } « 

h^ 

@

0

@

j

rr' % 

ar

ua >

n'

yv

ro

m

m

4a

rn

xs

El

r(

t

r

r

y , 

7i  

l

r

7  % /  % / 

r

i/''

Mb'%

r
r

ij •

i,." 

nY

ds '}` '

1

l6. -- 

m

o

palalduwoj

X )

C

BUIOB
u0

X

X

X

ssaJBOJd
u/

l. 

X

PRPeBS
ION

0

l ' 

w

au

C. r.: 

rG

IA. 

b

12

gyy

c

P

na `

wQY

rw 

r ,, 

2

Q

w &

tQ, 

e

m, .............. ...... __. .........................

M

C

r3F

C

C ` 

o

v. 

41

G '

n

N

r

m

3

S. 

rry .

c: 

m

tv ' 

l:.  . 

Y

as ,

a 

a-
y "°

n +

a`
r

tk'. 

K:: 

0.:

1. 

f

y ' 

y

t3. 

tr1 

y . 

w

R9

ylb

U

e;

E,. 

w

pi

ny

2

CL

0

www._._._._._._._....  

c

y <

r
q. 

u
a

W

Q. 

Ui

va3

i7r

ar

ca

w... 

vy '

rx'

s

W

e~ 

say

ws

cs

V) 

a

In

m

ur > 

a . - 

n

m ; 

m

Z3In

Q• 

cy¢

i

iri

cs

Gl .

Lo :.

G9

Qa

rjq

d

43

In

UO

C)( 

ClejU
40

W

I



178

it

m

ax

ro

ii

l

i/ 

If ////

jlr

ii

I

1gr /

i / -  

Irk / ' ` 

ar . 

u

I()

I /

r  / 

i , 

i

p 

r 

r

h

r

as

111111 / 

r

papidwoo

x

6uO

X 

ioB-
u

x

SsaJ5OJd
ul

x

x

ww .

www ................, _.................. 

PaIMS
ION

qh

vy

hY

ja

L

r

UG") 

2

C

C

l

Ci 

Py

N

f

N

n

Y`  

ry

n

Qro

O  

Ab

OI  

yy } 

fr

ay

pox

Y

c

y

as

aoG

r

R

n

4. 

pll, 

4, 

Sl ^

h . 

C

ti

o' 

bb

q "(

ry

SY

lz

Iry "

1

Qy
r

ww

ti5 `'. 

Ry

Q

I,

A.

I

S

n  

a] 

iw

m

M  

G  

ery

A

wS

rtj4V

L6

1.

6

v

1.

6

AU

Z11

Q

3

C

C` 

ABX

I.

lw

QY

CX (.

D

or

W

O

jz
P

A 

Li'
Y

p

is .

K5

8



F

9

C

N

rd

a, 

yr

iu

rer

nJ

a

a' 

y

E .

5

j/ 

Y

m

C1

s (

J

C) 

fi

fi

N

ll ;

i

qY

a

N

j 
1

Imo!!! 
r 

u

aJ

qr

ai

F

o

fi

n

r_.
a

ro

U

Q- (?

s

f

h

as

6 '

csFx'. , ,
y ," 

T'
i

Pi

ty

is _ 

11

r/ 

1

yy

m

ri

a-' 

d

ham. 

f

I„ 

rl

pa,

aldwo0

x

BuloB-
UO

X

ssoiboed
U/ 

payee#
S

ION

X

X

kn

CY

ana

r

rc'

A

13

ro

C

T

Q.)
Y

uA

nY

aY

C

7

u 

m

L

r"

a

G7

cA

CL

y

r 

C9

C

O ; 

00

y '

cP

eF

zi ...

c... ..... c

ev

ur

6

t 

ud

CA '

ryj -

G

qJ

R5

Tl

P.

A. `

s .; 

m

r1
C.

A. >

y

C: '

L4  

TY (

A

v1

m

P

6

ry

W

y

124 ' ^

a

CL

to

N

Cd•` 

CW

N `' 

v— 

a) EQ) 

rz

N (

YS

C

cLl (

jy

q) 

E :

3co

CL

Cr. 

10

Ci

V

O ®

Y

r



w

I

2 % 

OL

91

F

P

13

P, 

2

c

P2

qD

2

cn

cL

p

EF

Z

121

8

N) 

ID

a
Q

C: 

g. 

CL

D

0

m

m

rl

rx

Q) 

u- 

0

ID13

po

lb

P. 

pa;

alduioo0

x

x

x

x

ssejfiojd
ul

PGPeJS )
ON

x

lb

Z

tm

o

LL

b

p

4. 

cL

Qo

prL

m

P

ra

G

Q

P. 

ru

U. 

cL

u, 

Q

lAA

o

NQ3

N

r? 

Q. 

Cm

u) 

Nf

u '

o

2

Zu
1. 

lu

w

Q

1. 

Q

ID

I -

P 

s

Q

1,,-- 

2

2

me

m

m
a) 

Q, 

s

I- 

p

Q

I, 

Q

i 

z `

tee

coL

6

Q

Z

13

z

S

m

ra

cl

cL

P_ 

20

0

13

Fr

Ni

Lo

rq

rozzUSIn
In

tiV) 

uo

0Q. 

rq

ID

EitV

ZZ

C) Ql) 

C) 

E

ca

o

A? 

CL) 

0 (

L) 

v® 

tiara
c7

C) 

C

W

C17

O

14

I



41

w_. ......... 

On

yn..
aar

nQ. 

0

0
4

r ~

it

fF. 

u '

S

0 .& 

4J '" ; »

wb

u  

f/

jir //,'"' 

r/ / // /

r"'

wws
ijr (// 

i 

moiI % 

it.

Ma

iY'
lJ /(

1

y/ 

i

n

n .. 

ay

t  // 

I % / 

tl

S

s

C

nx

u

m

a ¢ 

ca

ct

CJ

n

m

e

an '

Q

I"/^ / 

f / /

i 

i

YI

i '

a / 

ab

mr ' 

as

rn

na ,

IZ

ni ;} 

tl////  

i / %% . 

u9 

Ij

N

u

m

Z

eS. 

nu
1. 

a} 

a

x

a

na

ea

n

o  

I  // 

l /) 

r  ;'

Td

u

e.
ro

I$

J

ti

a

b

rets . 

aw

a

firo

ry

n

AM

0 ....................... 

Y 

i .. 

is

o

Icu ,

d 

r

I .. .........

F

n

7 '

O%%
i/„ .. /  / 

i
r// 

v %/

O

ry

pejo/

dwoj
BueoB-
up

x

x

X

X

X

X

SSOJ60td
u/ 

Pal®
e1S

7oN ....................... .-- .. ............. 

14tQ

b

tr

nv

r

oa

ri

I.

A. 

B1. 

IL

tL

LL., 

ai
1.

4

r

WM

0

ha

G

nr

ai

arae
a"
r .

i

v 

ULai
au

M

ab
e:

y

o  

w

Z? 

cn

rY

a   

v° 

r ^' .[ ., 

u

F

ry

ai

uY

r, _ -

c, 

v

ra

i} 

Y ` 

Q

N '%. 

14

Q

Co

R5

any "

tl" 

pa

m

0.

Y

bq ' 

ry

U .:

r

ri '

i

vb

cl

a

2, 

ar

ex

t
v

iA

Yr .

4} 

sa

roca
r% "

u ,

rn "= 

fi.: 

ni

er

n

tx

y

y

i
1

N

2.

r

C1

n

is +

v

n

ria`.. ?, .

a' 

in; 

iv 

n. ` 

cr¢ 

0

Q

Yv

F

K.

r .[

g

e

a

tl6

YAI

m -
0

ny

a` 

iro 

m ° 

ci

ai

iay (.

7

Q

r

ar .

a.: 

m

o

ti 

a

h

e > 

ur

i

ur

as

r

y `°

a

r

n

rr

c. 

a

c7

0

N

x

tix

cn

n

u

a

w ,

eu0

W

acoCJ

W

y

C

G

z

o

z

0

m 

N

O

N

U

OC:
1 , 

rry

C} 

4".

1

Q7

U  

X

U

O

UG

0302
C..

l

m..) 

Oc(

7Q

11



fim
un

0

z

r

C) 

I-- 

W5

Ar

z -
41

k-

3

ID

4

1

0

p .

2

zo

OU

2

Q) 

C

C

Q. 

r3. 

Q, 

2- 

lI '

Q

T

qx

o

W

v

Cx

c) 

5'. 

P2

z

G3

U

6

u

c 

CL

g. 

0

Z

E

2

E

P. 

4

1A.
1

pajoldwoo

x

guioB-
uo

x

x

x

X

x

ssOJBOJd
u/ 

POPPIS )
ON

lo

Q

U - 

P2

8, 

6

v) IC

I

I.

xo
N

zJ

C

2

2

p

1v

LL 

u) 

u— rd

rqcq

W) 

co

cn

v5

rq

CQ) 

D

O

t6

t5

Zj

0

a) 

C7

cl

C) 

fl- 

CJ

m



Vii, 

CLFz

r, 

u, 

z --

2

p

x

Q

rl

t &

I

Ij

C

is

n

lu

Q - 

a -

I

rm

Z

1

0

cp

r.
j

L

inrl
1w
2

0

b

Lu

gy

U) 

P- 

ck

Z

Pp

Q1

wrx
C

T3

E, 

r' 

Q

zs

I

C

g, 

tn

Q.

ro

T

e

cx
F,- 

IAA

rl- 

E'. 

14r2 (

j

In

Lu -

ra

papidwoo

pajoldwoo

buioB-
u0

x

x

x

x

nu.
IoB-
u0

x

x

ssOJBOJd
Of

X

ssOJBOJd
u/ 

P8)
Je)
S

ION

P0PeJS
ION

160

13 '

o

0) 

z

C

u - 

C
Li! 

Q. 

Q

u

CtIFrU

Ol
v) 

C

3

zE

t, 

m

Q

CY

C% 

a

S

jp

Q

m

U

lb

ffi

c

4c

Q

S
l , (

1) .

2

4 ,, 

z :

k 

a: 

I., .- . :, 

I

m

lu

0) 

CL

Q

Q, 

x

2

14L

C) 

Q

N2

Nt

I

c

u) 

Q) 

L6

qay

c\

i

CL

c,

4

CL

E

rb

ru -` 

u

S, 

Q) 

rz

C7

9S

Q) 

EU

rz

E - 

Q. 

cL
4) 

CL

m — 

m

Q) 

Va

N -§ 

E

2- 

r: 

D 

2r. 

cL

Q

m

m

2

Z
a~ -

E: 

1. 

u

1- - 

rot

Lo03

a

is

cm
c) 

L - - - - ----------- -------------------------- --------- — 

11,

111,
111,
111,

111,
11", ---- "

I



7w

lu

0

ckQ

SS

U

i5

U

rp

P

13

t) 

6

z1z

2Q

M '

o

13

mvp
1

Z. 

u

0

0

21

a

A2

m

LZ

P. 

QL

Lt

zi

6

r1% 

Z

poialdwoj

x

x

x

x

X

x

x

ssoiBoid
ul

x

POPLJS )
ON

x

Ci

0

LL

t3l

U

10E

rk

C.

4IM

LL

c

P
f

L

0

Q) 

fi

C14
p

P

2

rl

0

0

0

0

Z-, 

r, 

j

F3

Q

w

eq

e

p

0

65

01

6

Lu

In

Vi

Mu

CL

U) 

Z
C) 



i

Qm

wa

IPmCL

N    ; "  

ars   

i   :. 

7  

m  

to

1,? 

u

m

n

n

ax

N

QI

Y "'

t.. 

C.'.  +  

a4

To

Z ' 

1  

f 

M

1 / 

i,. 

w  "

e .... .. • 

rx, 

R

t

cy

a

ry

I'

L

pa,

aldwop

X

X

buiob-
up

X

x

ssoiBoed
ul

POPe7S
DON

a

C41

V

n. 

al -'

o

a

Q. -

3a,. 

y

tx

ar

ry

4b

Ll.. 

C

m  

11

6  

CY

ff} 

4r

Y3ry

C

3

i 

QY

X

I'

L' 

mni '

3 }) x

C"

1

C

O61

W

Na

n

m

rx

n'
s `° 

ro

is

wa

a "

x

ra. ,

L.' ''

n

m

c (..> ..

rx

Y

N

N

6

vp

rr
s' 

Qi

xCty

VAS

tz

C

9
5

r"9+, .'`

rel =? 

ii

Pp

Qx

Q!

y

fl

ro

L

CY 

Y

C1, ' 

u` 

Q  

Q. 

r] 

ai

0

a} 

o ° 

vY

N

i_

a

C 

iBJ (] 

2  

CIS

1.

17

cz

Pi

ll.
l "?... 

Q(') 

Cy

b

h3

CS

a

r.].. 

r, 
v, 

r.

Y °'

S , 

C

N

E •

U

Cli

Cry

a' 

rq

w - 

W

V

C > d

Sr„ 

O

w 

EU

C

6

O

L

Lo
AN

C: 

O

93

C.

7Y

i :

3rz

v

AR').......

U 

M.. 

CSA

Y

q

N- 



w

I

2

2- 

C

2

n

Q

r2

p

Q

o

A- 

I, 

0

o- 

Q, 

m

w

E -

p

m
x

Z 

cx ;

11

0

12, 

j, 

4 

Q

6

r

P, 

e

111, 

0

C- 

Co

P

G

Eo

a

I

gZ3

m

G

m@
m

C

r 

Q, 

N

CL .

1 

w

Ix

mu®

tl

Yl

q.

0

r- 

ra

01

EE

0  

Ys

w

r,;0

0

z

L

u

Q) 

fi- 

rl

Z, 

Q

pajoldwoo

x

x

x

x

BU10.
5-

uo

x

x

x

x

x

ssaiboi
d
u
i

POP", 
3 )

ON

ay

C

LL

rL2

C

0

0

D

U

o

CN

tl0

m

121

Z -

4tQ) 

2

2 '

o, 

c

Y3,

2m

4c00cr

o

p

LD

r

14

0 .

0

p

c, 

0

n

I

y

fi

4v

qyZ

3- 

2

Z

2 "

U

m

2

X3

z

z

In4i
N

0

w

o

6

1d2

T

r

U

U

P, rxto

O

04

LID

U') 

CL

IL

relW
rz

0IZ

Q) Q- 

1

L15

3, 

N

Cl) 

Lo

Lo

Lo

Lo

I



r

RO

w .............. ... 

P

m

m

c

w

a

ii

iy

aA

p

m

m

v

F

u

a

n

ni

A

ry

y

fi

m

ry '

ci

as

nA

y

CJ

r

j

pa "`

xLU
ỳ

s

r. 

fff

y

POleldwoD

W.".

mmm".......................... 

BUIOB-
UO

x..... 

x

x

x

x

x

SSOJBOJd
U) ,, 

X

POY
eIS
lo/°/...... ................... .... _ .... 

Ia

r

r

r

C

2

C

ttb

I

4A

tlY

QA

a1

aM

ta'
7

m

LL

o  

N

N

N

N

ra.. 

is

C. 

r

p9

b

RA

N

vY

C 

y

QY '

P5

U `

A) 

N

is '?, 

air

tys

C

F

w

n , 

f? 

ri

yr

m

QQ

F . 

w

F? 

as ! ° 

KJ ` 

ro

r5

0

cs

P. 

it

C» 

a? 

a "° 

Ki '' 

2

r'" 

ra. ,"' 

ar

as

rcAvs

o7 ,

ar '

r" 

F

m

ry =

H

r

I? 

Q

@A

IN
W

R

F

a `

m

ry '

r

w

i'

n

us

ins

tY

b "'

s ,? ( .

n, 

rs

F

rr

nA

Cr

i

n '

k.: 

ti

QL

ra. 

lii

m

c

0.. 

w

C

w

6j

47 '

V`- 

E •—   

tea` . ..

R -

i

ev

W

Q. 

a 

rz

a  

v

n

z

Q

ODS

CB.. 

coca

mLO
LO

LO

Lf) 



f

wwww

ro

i

U

sa

h•

a

w    

m

o 

h

m

mF
i.  % 

vw
r

m

rr- 

q
s

c5 ,

c4i. 

F

cir `• % 

1

jr
IN

s
cr'

i

2

c

d:. °' 

w ®.  

m  •    

o  

Vy

p

w

rj  

r

N

P

N

a ! 

7y

R

E71 '

ny

tat

ret

w

h

O  

U (.} •.. 

tit

p " )

4   

i , 

palatdwoo _. buto6-
up

y

x

S.

Saoboad
sat

X

POPWS )
ON

ro0

01

ca '.'.

s

y

a

m

m

a

C

c+

a (

ry

iai

m

6L

cn

cn

mC7

O

i

m

ti

M

is

w  

C

w .

mm

ter.." ................... 

m ... m

C

N

N

LZ

W

RD

N

Tit .

fi

rx

RQ •+.` 

P

w

r7

vi . •

r , 

ar

ro

M
a

a

w '

3

a

P

isw

YN

q. 

o

w 

ad

w

w

6

4b

in

T9

w

fM

a

N ¢

j

W

a

a

u - 

uy

rs, 

r

U

b

S

p

uj _ 

u

C  

N

N

W

a

C

9

r

Z

rry

Zz



We

2, 

p

m

F. 

E: 

i5

Z

S- 

2

c5

fZ

ed

21

6

1, 

6

rz

5

P. 

Y, '

J, 

v- - '

D

Z

C) 

ffi

11 .

a

P

cL
0- .

ia

r

0

r

rz

vy

e3

Cle
0 — - — 

m

rL

G 

0 : . 

w -- 

TJ

i% -

6

U3 — 

lb - :

rp

0

U

Q

22

p

1

T

0

z

r.
2

2 .

0

4E

m

TJ

Q

rx

aq

tu *

d; 

Z

7.
3

C

0

F

p-

Tj

0

z

2

2

CL

p

0

ns

co

CL

pajoldwoj

x

BufoB-
uo

x

x

x

x

SSOJBOJd
Ul

x

P@)

JeJS )
ON

Fria

Z

U- 

ILI

of

m

E

lz

rj

M

4c

R

2

2

a

a

m

p

P, L" ` 

2

IT

2

E

8

p

CLJ
t, 

I
T

C7

cL

rL

O

0EL
LU

oLu

T

An

ro 

Q) 

w0

Er - 

O

CL

zT

call

ca

ei

0



Vi, 

Pb E

P-
1

m

Zo

0

13

U

Q

a

a

Lb

Li, 

2

F

10lb
I

z

IR

C, 

w

0

Qtiz

m

cL

cx

cl

by

lo

N

I
c> 

m

N

o

cx

pajolduioj
Bu , 

lofl-
uo

x

x

x

x

x

ssBJBOJd
ul

PoPP)
s

JoN

13r

ii

C

v

E' 

k2ra

SC) 
tz

0

12

o

Z

V) L6

I

i

t6

1.

6

12

p

E

a, 

t

t

F

41

wi

c

u

4c

B

z, 

w

cx

z

w

tq

z '

o

i .

6

Z

w

R. (

i

o, 

u) 

FZ

Q

w

p -

u

ch

Q

w

rx '

D

m

13

In

Ch

r,

4

Yr........... r

CD .

01Q. 

Qb

Q

Kz

U

cu

r

En

3

co

CL

IL

Q) 

nb

Sa

lb

IL



vii, 

I

2 .

2

P

z '

i

ZL

w, 

rm

a

13

o, 

49

ii5

tit
FX

12 -

19 

2

i; 

p

Q. 

Q

aIn

TE

Zm

QL

D

4) 

0

rx

UI

n

tn

Q. 

CL

mo
E, - 

CI

S 

C

Q

c

m

0

my
a9

r.

5

u .

0

iu

E

CLavrr

Z

m

m '

2

z

CLIO

GS

D

C

4

0T3

Z1. 

u

z

g

Fr

0

Q

ID

1:

3

C4

p

CL

Ic

pajold-
00

BugOB-
UO

x

x

x

x

x

x

ssoiBO,
jd
ul . 

POPM)
ON

x

Z

a- 

12

P. 

Q

CL

CL

Aj

ii

cnC) 

LO

yam_ 

a

P

c

TP

Z

2

a

PA

a

Q , 

1. 

Z§ 

p

m

Z

z

41,
1

ij

z- 

u

M

P 

w

fn

K2

Q. 

r

C, 

0

I - Z-

2

ja

C

L 

A. 

E

2

E

2

Q

Q

z

Ll

j

Q4

WS

lY

N

aF

a3

a3

0

U

C

Q- 

cx

p- 

Q, 

I? 

I- 

N

rz• 

Q3

Q) 

Co

rx

uj

rz

Cb

I



u

m

m . 

h

w

y

w  

c  

u

c

w

b

r' 

s

r.  

a

m ., 

r. 

v

r •. 

M19, 

b

nr; 

P & 

b

o

W  

b

E

a

w

w `

cr

r

C} 

n

u

pr  °" 

m , 

2]  / / /

i

a

f?

i $   

u

c

q   

o

w  

by   

y

w '

a° .°' 

1

U
r-° 

s: 

m

ca

a /   

1

r

m

v

a + 

l", 

F

ar

q. 

ni ., 

pr

w

v

Cd

Yi

ro

Tt

w , 

c= 

U

c:. 

o. //  

r / 

4

c. 

cr

c

F

w

b

b

ar

u

m

c

w *• 

a  '- 

m

ID

w

c

m  

o

m

h 

c

f  

rb / 

ai

w

r

m '°° 

w

w

W

a ,

at

C .., '

a

n

w

C 

q

o -

oW°
3

m

N

y

C 

cx..

w

W

u

c  

y

o

v

y 

y

Uo

f„ 

U /'''/ /

y  

l /  

4Y
4._ 

m

y 

b  

5

w 

U

w

m

C1

3

w

o

y `" 

Q

pala(

dwoo

m.... . ............. ...... ............... 

6UIO6uo
X

X

X

X

X

X

SSaJI
ojd
SB( 

PSUMS )
ON

T

U

b

w

y

c

o

m

i

C

C) ... 

cx. 

ui

w

ar

O (,) 

w (

D

0

ie, 

CUQ

Cw"k

zs

W

0

O

a

vv. 

v .,..,,,. .. 

L7

w

C

W

U .

cj

Q..

zi

KYrS

my '] 
YJY

w

4., 

w

4

q '

1 "'

S

@

m@ .

0 

I

U

a

w

w

g

w

QY

U

w

w ) 

E3 .": 

c

u

m

n. 
v

1 `

w

p '

u

a

u

a

v
2

i

iz

w

w

E

w

v

v

O

a

o

v

w

w

ry

arr

rmq ,

nr

Ury

Z., 

yw '

a

w

r

5cF

nn ® 
Hca ¢; 

W

c

c

nr

nr

r

n

v 

s

a

a

c

c 

3

c

a .-.°

a

d. 

c

b

b

rv' 

es) 

E

c

2a

C

4.. 

u

er'
i

r =

s

05

C7

re

v

n. 

m "

wa

y ,

p

C1

m ' 

co

u

Lo

L6

Lo

co

LLl

CL

Lo

uj

L6

C

QY

C9

u

cQ

b

U

eL5

C.: 

4a

m

4) "

CJ

co

lb

93

o

O

C9.. 

ams

W

b

Lo

W

M

00

Cr,
J

ONa



n

J

f / 

u

o

rc

or

n.  

N - 
w

t 

m

m

z

N

a ^ // 

r/ 

o% 

y  

a  

oa

o

6

N
a,.

w

ro

f,: 

Vj

w

Fcn

r / /

j / 

r

f / 

f' / / % 

1 , 

f

f

V' 

F

a" 

p

Q

rma. 

U

G

C

aA '

k1

y ,

C' 

r. := 

s

j

l

0 

ti

F- 

is

NU, 

N

l, 

i9  

6

r5

qy

n9

fi" 

Npy

W

I /' 

N)

rd

i+

q (/ 

w

F

N

m

w

ni

cr

a

to
Lu

N

34

py

W

N

N -.:'

s

1

m

y

N

o- 

rix

V'

C..', ;

u'

3

RtCJ

it

Ui `

A  

0wCJ

96

tri

Y

ci ' 

h °

N' 

Z 

CX

mIn, 

9

rY

vl

P

j

N ,

r 

Yi. 

4Y

f "

Y

p

C

W

K-.' ; 

CY

R3
X •.. 

U , —

6

pR . 

61

T3Z6TY

0c©: 

f

10

pepldwoo

m.............. 

buio6-
u0

X

X

X

X

X

ssalbold
u/ 

mm. 

POPLIS )
ON

M
N

w, 

fJ

ai

O

tl

U

U
1

C

LL

49

CP% 

CJ

oa

B

6

y

r"] 

rn

u

P. 

tiPS

o

Lom. 
m
u) 

Sc

C

9

NLR; 

F, .

2

N

b7

qb

m

rn

r.

r

i~ 

N

h '` 

N .

ih

GY

2

Yyl

taj

ar

E

Zi

y

r.'

J

Cl

Y.

Y

N 

b

1

C3

fi

U.. • 

ap „,,, 

C.
Y  

rY

r -.. 

C

N

U

N

J

N „„ 

N. 

u% 

fi

2 '`

z '°

i -

L? ' 

nax

i

u

B

NU

pUi

q

a. 

i

rt9

ar

F' 

C: 

bt

c'

ir
r7

q
t . 

m' _, 

y

wd

ny

uj

ura

ua

i

ari

vi

amro

r

ce5

LLI

a

ui

uati

ua

era

tiu

ek

a

m . 

ro

ro

a

z3" 

iy

j

yW

fi

c.

r

ar

ar

0 (

u

v

a

ei

ua

v

ce

c

c

CL

a

c, 

oo
w

coco

ary

rr4

crr



Val

NN

0

CL

en

Q

Q

Q

123

o

2

0_.,. 

Q

C, 

p

cn

rh

C

pm
0

0

3

a

Q. 

0

P

w

LL

P. 

bu.

106-
uo

x

x

x

x

x

SSDJBojd
U/ 

POPVIS
ION

I

u

Y3

C 

y

U- 

co

a

r11

9

CS

is

LL

Z—: 

2 '

sIsz! 

yr

fQ(
tfY

Qo

J0) 

r% 

rz

P, c)- 

0

C

0- 

Q

C

in

Ri

O 

z

O 

li

m

c

0

Ei

6

m
x

P 

f2

e

a

er

Q

Q

J

r1

a

q' 

1 ' 

K9

4Ci

C416

QL

a

CDzz

U) 

tp

Q- 

i

Lo

G? 

rn

ILI

lbcc

I

03

C) 

05

0) 

NN



A" 

Roow

C0
c/)

E

C/) 

Q

2, 

palaidwoo
x

pg)

aidtuoj

x

Bu " 
100-
U0

BUIOB-
Uo

x

SsedBOJd
U/ 

SSOJBOJd
Ul

POPWS
ION

POPL)
S

JON

x

LL

Ti

M

C

Q

U - 

vi

m

U) 

Uk) 

e,,,,,,,.. 

m} ,... 

42

5

C4

C7

roc

6

F- 

r.

A

4

45

QY

m

o

V

a .

1

Q

91

e "

R

N

r..

5

iz. 

E

P.

P

2

w

5

E, 

u

2

cq17

Lu

rL

W

CL

QU: G3

CisM

q

ro

Z3

m

M

z

C) 

z- 

Q) 

m

C) 

D

Q

a

aCL

LZ

I'

D

Z3
a- 

ED (

uftl
0- 

T-1

Ei

CO

cb

CD

3) 



w
i*- 

Q - 

IL

p

2 -

T

Q

P

r

p

p

F: 

na

ck

Ci

E

@VM
E

m

CX

11

pajoldwoo

X

x

s58JBOJd
u/ 

P-

91delS
WN

ID

QP. 

0) 

G

cL

LL

TC' 

iJ

Uy

Il

c 

99
ca

o
o -

2raj
Iry

S

N

PS

19

a

m

Z

cx

cx

2Uy:
Ei

C?.

2

PrPA2 . 

2

c
L
rz

oo

rj

El) 

41

Q

Iz

Z3

co

W

n- 

ui

co



tri

i

d

1 

m,

e

if

E

o

N :  

4  

cx ,`,,  

rt

rJ

N ..  

n

r' 

i

T'

f

2

eap

a

rA

N '

b

mylr  
J (

b

M% 

vi

iS

yr

m

ry. 

Aj

padadduwoo0 ..------...., .......................... 

m

buiob-
u

x

X

X

X ... 

X

SSaeboid
ud

PaYadS
8oNW.................................... ....,....,,,,,,,,.,. 

ILI

c, 

ry

I{, 

wm

R9

N

LL  

3- 

Cl

ay

a

p4

X: 

C ®

y

N

j

tO

m

U) 

r

m

t, 

ar

a

CY

m

sx
ro

c ' 

of ' 

N

a :

A

IR

F: 

u

ffimra. 
N .. 

cY

W

i„

y

ti

QY [

t

ry. 

rlT

4: 

a

u

rm^' 

r{ <{ 

ti

F

vA

io-: 

k

cA

F,? .

s

nr `°

a

tlz

N

N

N 

n

cz

qmy :

x 

y

N

P `:.

a

ro

n'
y

o

m

N

ry

y

CL

0. 

F

vtl5i

ry

m '

i

u ° 

y

F > 

va

or

cx

ar `

Ga

m

wy ."—'" 

m

F

ra :

r3 ? 

m

s, 

y

r: 

a

N

E: , 

c

m

m . >~ 

c ¢;' ;

x

o

r

w

osi

a

fi

a, 

a

ra. 

w

m

N

ar

nr

N

m

Q 

i

c: 

Cs

c

m . ` 

s ;°  

Q. 

ar

s~: 

x

r

ra

N

res

r! 

ua

ro

m

c

n... 

Q. 

L

ry

IIJ

C:
Y '

a

cx. 

Fti

y

t% 

m

l

cA

n1

U

4Y

c1

J

qy

br [

k

ro

Lu -

c

4 (

L

U ] '

w

B :

J

LxY

IR

a

ll

Y

aw :,

n

W

Cxt

Ur ? 

a .

fix '- 

Q

m" ` 

F

gy

r: 

s

N

r,;

r

N

N

r: ; , 

l:

Y

ca

3

6

vy

N

a

m

N {

I

r 

T ? 

ry' 

iv

rx' 

p

ro

4. 

to

rAr

C

cn

cli

LLI

a

r  

M

u

cs

r

M

ck  

CU

lz

e" 

F

f

as

r

0

as
r

3

zt

Nll '

o

uz

CO

y

k

uta

t:

a

CN 

A

c' 



Vii, 

N

v

N

m

In

In

N

N

R

c ' 

o

N

OI

n, 

q r

y

1. 

N

x.: 

cs

a 

f' 

r 

l

i  '

S

r -~'

t

xr

Q

X3
I

v

N

J% / ' 

u"  

W

is

m

rl "' 

N

p

N

sem. 

10

i'' 

r,. 

v -... 

nr
ilk %/ //// 

c

r`.
s ' 

R. " 

i 

r

P
c; 

N

pole

Idwoo
b.................... -...... ..""".. _ 

m............ .... 

uiob-
uo

XX
X

X

X

SSoiboid
ul ........... . 

payelS )
ON

lu

ID

Il. 

yj

o

Ol

4

N

C  

C

N (

1. 

r  

L2

C

h

a

NF' 

ai

C 

C.

1  

C

O

j

6

ryl

N..... ..... 

N

C

N

U

m 

w

qvy

o

vUU .'

YNN'a 3 .

qmr

r(
m".0r . 

ri :' 

M°'' 

Y .

y 

Am

C'
nS '-

s-' 

hN'.

mr?N '- 

roCro'

a *

N .

3

yN

cyv

@

m

oa ,

ti .(

n: 

t5 

r' 

10

W

r

rYNN

Na

rON 

uq
@s

Z

5

5

5i

m

Rq0u' 
F

8 = 

n,

In

zcm
v

m

CA
b

N4K
n

n

u

In '

UFn- 

qmcy

4Y

U

d3 -

C

N

N

E

W

C1Y

N

v

v

m :?

a !: 

r

pu

s: 

ei

F: 

as .

s

In

F

F

cn

a

m. 

m

m

P

tay

u .` 

en

u

c

o

ar

ar

In

v

Y

a .._ 

u

it

n, 

ra ® 

r 

v

m

a

E. 

m

rn 

2 .

r .: 

F: 

16

m

b ..(`_

n

u

nvi

m

y

ffm

b

nr'i

m

pi

4' '

r

r

y `

N

r

C

U

qUr, 
N -

rzs

L'

k" 

p, .

b '

C

4y 

y

Ct. 

N

o ! 

r 

m

E! 

2

u

cx. . .

Y. 

F? 

w

U ,

N

rd

W

as`

i

a , _.'

w, 

N

a (.) 

N

N

m

0

r_ 

o

iS

N

c :

u =

i .`° 

r (.

5

U

m .

F•< 

m

y

5

m

C

m....... _ ... ........._.... 

m......""" ... ............ 

c"

7

cm'
B

Cry

W   

e) 

f' 

d

l  atv '

fig ( 

C9

0

Q

N

Tx.

9

DC7

N

N

w (

v

3

w

CS~

7

oCU

lC5

Z
e

o

fJ

ZM

Zs0 ' " 

r`

csw

us

ry,.

y " 

U3 .

4y

RI ,. (

95 .

0

QIr
It (

D



kilo

ri) 

CLlu

P

rx

16VY

m

2CLcx

Ei, . 

C

cp

i,-, 

P. 

j9
5

13

P

E! 

R

N

ql

g, 

0

F-' 

6

to

a

S

6

2

2

is

6

2

F

P

p

M

Rf

lb

M

m

CX

p

Q

Z, 

01

r? 

x

m

F- 

Iz

ZL-  

Q

M , '- 

r., 

kjv

kb

z

j. 

X, 

Y3

F-: IS

r

z

rxCM

m

rj

PCL

P -
l

r

2N

Y3

zVJ . 
CX

0

M

p

LL

papidwooBUIOB-
UO

x

x

x

x

x

x

ssajocud
U/ 

POPU)
S )

ON

Q

I

eJ

L' o

6

N

01

ZZ

V-
1

6

U) ',.

Z

P, 

8

0

m

to '

r 

0

L" 

i3

6

U) 

C) 

121 '

D

2

160

CrJ

11.

C, 

IM

LL

2

rd} 

U5

r) 

rl

Q) 

133
Lo

r.

C7

CO

us

us

s

6

21 

q

13 , 

n

A' 

6

73

I

F- 

0

z

r

F 

wwa

6

cx .

9

Z -

X

C

N

D

C

Irn

lu

S

cA

Z4

CX

6

1.- 

Iz

LU

cr

C3

Lr) 

N

Lo

cz

Lo

cli

L6

L6

Lo

cli

UA

a. 

V

L6

Lr) 

trj

O

22co

E

ru

b

Q) 

SZa

ZQ

5U -

Q

Q, 

a

4? 0

a

cava

caa

a0

Q) 

a- 

or

Q) 

0

I

ro



w

e

43

a
N

Lu

IZ

z

Tj

Idj

cx

rx

r. 

C, 

Q. 

f.

j. 

0, 

0

a

LU

b, 

t, 

C

T

P

rx

rx

0

G

o. 

Z

j3

2

lu

IZ

0

12

P. 

C

I

F

la- 

6

p

H".

x

pajoldwoj

x

BUIOJ5-
UO

x

x

x

sse.

150id
ul

PO)

MIS
ION

z

Q

ri

Q

G

r

u

LL

F: 

rl

04

kn

N 

E

T, 

S1

pF

c

co

m

5

b

LP

U

0

m

0

Lu

Q

Y

r7 '

C5

C

ttz

Cx

cx

Ix

rL

0, 

0

CLis

z

m

Q, 

m

0

Q, 

p

1

i - _

a, 

NS

6

cu , 

0

12) Uu
Q

x

S

CL

0

q

CL

0

p

ID

a- 

l

0

It

to

1.

6

C\

I

L6

13

Lo

rz

C

a6r

Z3

t

vy

2 (

D

Z3rz

rz

00 

S03

mcn

0

0

a- -

C

s. 

N

cV



Val

I

In '

29

In

F, 

2 

F

2

In

Zp

In

In

Z3n, 

0

N0Q. 

o

E

w

1w

X 

w

15

E

It

Lx

p

2

1

rl

rJY .

2

62

Cl) 

a,, 

2

rz

n: 
D

3

m

Q

m

s

Cx

cL

a

m

Im- 

cxQ, 

Q

Eo

cx

Q

pajoidwoo

palaidwoo

wa

ouro&
uo

x

Bu.
IoB-
uo

x

x

x

x

ssOJOOJd
Ul

GsDJBOJd
ul

Pa1Ja1S
I -

N

aiCxoQ

Ct

mm

Q

Nrz

UL

C

LL, 

J

C5

C1L

z3

Q

u

wQ2
j

G

r 

Qtp

0

Q

o

In

R

n, 

o

rxE

rx

@

to

p

E

m

In

t2

In

2

2

In

p

TJ

lz

0

lz

In

In

In

o

a- 

2

x, 

co

rx

Co

uty

co

Q) 

c\

i

WQ. 
ix

c\

i

Ei

4z
Q) 

rz

Q > 

m

rz

mj

q) Q

0

Llj

a) 

In

3

rz

Q

cz 

6 

Q

0 

1211

z, 

c) 

4

Q

U- 

a

C) 

C
L

U

04

2

2

j

I



Vif

O

rx

V) 

n

A

r:

1q, 

Q

co

2

2

13

f
I., 

mrjt

Z; 

JR3

OL2
1. Q- 

rx

ZIa
F .,

3

m

rk
U) 

ck

t5

a -

o

tl 

cx 

2

X, 

P- IL

Ill

rj

mm- ---------------------- 

co

www

pajoldwoj
x

x

X

x

x

SSBJBOJd
Ul

P -

P -

IS

WN

ci

P4Q, 

Im

u

CQ, 
F

iu

rx

Z

tIY

co

m

tri

V

et

et

6N
t5

Q

I

v

ll 

cc

Uy

Z

m1

13

u) § 

SL

Q

6

In

F, 

2

P

6i

u

zs

QQ

r. 

u

u

P

i 

Z. 

Tj

o

F ., 

2 _

0

p

4cL
c

rra&
s

I

rz

a) 

91
r

7

CryI
W

Q

KZ

r3co

CY

cn

O



vif

N

FZ

E

A

IM, 

l

1., 

15

CIY

V) 

rk

23

E

lu

4E

Q

ruy

QL

papidwoo

x

pajoldwoo

Buiofi-
uo

x

5u.

iob-
uo

x

s

s

0

JBO
Jd
ul

ssajBojd
ul

X

Pi))

Je)
S

JON

P01MIS
JON

x

0) 

Z

U 

GS

LLQP
mP

c

C

0

0

04

2

2

21

z

6

E

2CB
4'

fi

ovY

Coes
21

r.- 

2

C

lz

E

z

t

oa

W

P

C, 

21

Awin

p

L, 

vY

014

U) 

rq

c

co

L0

c\

i

Q. EE

toIT

L) 

Q) 

Q 

cl) 

t.

g-) 

4Dcl) 



Wo

S

F. 

2

2

y

pd

Z63
P

M

C

2

z

a

0

p

2

2

polaidwoj

x

Bu.

106-
up

x

x

x

SSOJBOJd
Ul

P8JJWS
ION

x

Z, 

01

Lt.. 

r

li

U 

2

Q) 

0
m

zi

to

toto

N, . 

a

ra

2

S

2

R

i2

p

g

a

pP. 
2

0

C2

U

6 - 

Po '

D -

0

D , 

m

o

z

p

ud

o

J

0

Q, rb

E

4, 

2

z -

5

6

a -

22

CL

a

CD

O

QS

co

Q, 

co

cz

10

a

0

C) 

Z (

D

u) 

00

m

Q

CV



w

Inpajoldwo,
j

buio
W-

0
ssoiboid
U/ 

25,cc

trr

a

Z

0, 

2

73[ 

4p

0 , 

j 

SF

P

Q

xx

roM

CL0

m '

Ex

31

to

W

c., 

cxp

W

11

Iz

ZlzER

o

C16, 

x

6

P2IDS -

Z., 

W

Q .

11  

1.

44, 

Q, 

0
1, 

2

2

Q. 

0) 

XX

C

LUQ) 

T, 1Z

1

61

0

2 '

z

Q

x

POJJUJS )
ON

45

5

6' 

Q 

2

Q2

rz

Ee
CL

LL. 

a

tn

P

N

5L

2

cx

Ll, 

Z

ro

it

E

D

Lul

C, 

ca

ti

ca

m

E

I.

0
U

to

36

2

n

In

Ll- 

ra

CL

ra. 

tl

2

Q, 

Ju

z, 

AC

m

Q. Q. 

CL

oL

LSI

Id

E: 

M

S'

iC'
rE

66

m

Q

m

2

6

n

Lu

Z3U
4. 

uj

4k. 

Ln

co

P.

xZCL

uj

ry

Co

C14

Sv

ev) as

Ix

r

LLJ

rx) 

zz

ca

Ci

Lij

m

ab

v) 

U3



w

r

mg

F. 

fi

ay

Cap

N

Q

EL

z3, 

P- 

t2

Q. 

S

P. 

rX

IM

pajoldwoo
BU.

IOB-
u0

x

x

x

X

x

SSOJUOJd
U/ 

POPPS )
ON

Pj

S? 

AaI, 

p

a

2

6-' 

2

Q. 

z

P

5

T

vi

b

F. 

It

Z

12A 

p

9

41

2

5

2

Q

kij

E 

sdj
2

r,)- 

CL

LZ

LO

Cl) 

Lr) 

rz

D

LU

2-
1

E: 

Ct) 

rL

OU

OD

I'

ll— 

I     .... 

I



Vi

21

12

0

a

42Q

8, 

E

R

lj

U

CL

R

P

z

0, 

Vl

Y

Q

0

0

W

lz

cx

0

21

CL .

1

rj

12, 

F- 

po)

oldwoo
BU.
lOB-
Uo

x

SSDJBOJd
Ul

x

PO)

MIS
ION

x

ti

tm

r

C

Q

lz 

GS

a

li, 

LLT0

to

ro

L6

as

M- 

Cri

Lu

6'

2

Ay

NE 0: `

Gy

d5

w

g

t3y

IMr

p

4cU) 

r, 

F 

tzr,
y

E !

L

o

p

o

0) 

2

v

Q9

9G

LC if

Q

cs

Ll? 

Mu

CL

iP

O

uj

Q

0

Q
l

LuQ

Cl

03

yy

tp

rL

a

LU

CL

U

Q.) 

D



vif

Po

m.... ........... 

1-
1

Q

0
0

21PO

ra '

M

Al, 

215

Fu

in

G. 

P

E: 

E6

i9

L

w. 

ZD

U

C -

Z

E

0-

0

cx

QL

rj

1p

S1. 

iF. 

ra

2

Lb

rz

6

Ex

W

tn

c

Q, 

J2m

Q. 

e

X

iU.
105-
uo

x -- 

x

x

ssaiaoid
ul

PG,
ue)
S

ION

0

E

C

12

UJ
K5

Cb

m

02

Pa. 

Im, 

76

T. 

u

m

u

5

r, 

lZ

lz

m

0q, 

0

o

Lu

C

2

1

CWC; 

ro, 

00

ru (

L

06

LAY

O

rz: rm
LU

0

A? 

CO

C3

IS

Q, v) G

C7

Q) 

0

CD

a

a) 



w

I

C

Ct. 

cL

C

m

zs

0

Q" 

Lu

I

IS

M

tl

1

0

tbW" 

At

2, 

01

01

a- 

z

Q, 

ku

Z 

ra

M

cy
M

Iz

Ci

K9

IS

15

Of

pajoldwoo
bLi.
lofi-
uo

x

x

x

x

x

SSOJBOJd
Ul

POPWS )
ON

t3) 

IUQfa

UOI

Iy0

0) 

2

Q

C, 

I

u

cn

11

Q

QTY
F

t2

r

Z

Z -

AY

tl

2

0

6

Cfy

45

0.
9

Y8

U

3 . 66

z

2

T, 

z

M

cL

m

C
S

9

s

ILI

E

2

Q

m

Ta

P, 

m

Q, 

t, 

11

P

x

6D

ftl

ry

cx

m

cb

U aD

Q:) 

t

Lr) 

qu

OD

00

C6

ru

CK

CO

C) 

EiD

q) 

r

Eu

m

E 

CY

OLQ) 

93

a) Q

QL

O

ro

m

Q- 

ro) 

0 (

D

qu) 

m

a) 

0-- 

rIq

I'

D



w

11

z

12

21

0

jp

z,, 

a

a

U. 

o

CL1. 

6

6

Cm`, 

w

Q

0

Z, 

6

Z.' 

2

CFE

i2

s

FVY
N

vi

N .

0

i - 

Z

2

C-

qrx

rX

c

tm

CA

U, 

Ei

z

P". 

P. 

Z

ZL

Z, 

UL

I, 

to

y

R. 

0

m - 

0

10

cp

X3

z

P

6tJ
rx

0

rx
r.

1

pa)

aldwoj
Bu./
OJ5-

UO

x

ssaifioid
ulPOPOSJON

j

C.
3

ELI

U. 

U) 

LZ. 

Q) 
C\

j

CO
2 :

E

Rx

3

IP

rz

ra

V) 

nrcj; 

uz

Q) 

0

In

to

I

LU

IL

k'

o

cc

U- 



I

6

Q. 

IZ

A lo. 

Frry
z

LuCh

0, 

T

Kai
R

cm '
P

P -!

e

0

GA

C

N

Ge

x

rz

s

t:

n

P 

m

b

wf 

2a

2

w

ID

t

Z

12

1} 

6

2. 

P) 

w

dp

ZI6
Iz

p

Fw0

mZ3

Z

WQ

papidwooBUIO5-
U0

x

x

x

x

x

ssaibojd
Ul

PapeJS )
ON

r -I

lu

kL

is

o

tG

Yx

Id

oc

Z

tl

IzID

Q
o

Q5

co

o

B

P. 

V

T

2z

T. 

ider
r: 

T, 

u
F

o
l

Q2

2

wg

R'

6

is

P

F

2

D

S '

t55

Rt

o

31

Do

w, 

m

I, 

j

z, 

CJ

4I

p

jn

I,

p

Ta

2

P5CY

o

m

2

Z

m

o
p? 

K

R. 

F

o

n

lo

rl, 

cq

GY

0

LUcz

M

CL

QY

r: 

U

0: 

m

ro

I



vif

pajoldwoj
Bu , 
IOB-
UOssaifioid

U/ 

QQYI

T3

0

tx

lb

47. 
x

C
lb

x

xEipajoldwoo
J5U.
IOB-
UOssajboici

ul

1

21

CP

r3.. 

N

rA.

e

C-

0

N

l

CL

14

e

ZL

c

e

6

p

a

UJ13 
0 '

6

4m

6

0

E

10 CLZ40 '

i

I . 

0

C

x

h. 
xx

PGPBJS
ION

POIJP)
S

JON

co

N

a

C3

0) 

LL

5

a

rp

c

L? 

DD

0) 

T

a

r4

p

Q' E — 

U) 

2

1

Z5

hc

Q. 

h

is

22

F, 

x

C

LU

Jj

U) 

Lo

a) 

tz0

Q. 

00

L

r

LU

0
Z

10
Ql

u

it

Q_ 

C) 



W

r

g

cr' s !? .

c

o '- 

nHi ' 

r

r

dna

o

u-' 

7

ro !"' 

r

iJ

I

fr / / / 

r 

r

Q1

rY

Cr_
s

a

w  

is '/ 

1 

i

c

Ili
J

C

rn

ur

a

u

cv

nY

es

o

m

u

r 

lir
j

v' 

r / % 

r 

I'

0

M

4) 

ar

YY

cr .

c [

s

a

2

yr -

6m

V

aY

9 `

r

nr

d

CJ

t = 

uY

Y_ 

419

u

e

C- 

Q '

E" 

m ` 

as .`_" 

r

rra

F

43 _

7

a

c9

ro

n

ai

la

1

II / !  

1

el °

i 

i

@

c9
t

f

c

a 

a

uY

m ,/

r

r )

1

r

r

1 (//// 

c
N

m

o

r

s [

i. 

rn

U

v

ai

ar .

ca

r

fli ( 

1)  "$ 

f 

1

a9

t_ 

to

f] 

U

fti

Y• / 

p /

Ih   

r  

FF 

jll (

l

I 

N

1  ' 

YJ / 

4 !

2 

rf

F , ,

r

I ' 

c= 

ro

3

r   

a. _ _ 

C

1

u) 

pajoldwoossoiBOJd
U/ }( 

e..

PaVe1S
DoN

W

x

tA1

cY

Qs
W

P:,' 

c

C.

ry

m   

09

ex
r] 

W

u

C

C;

y {

u  

n

f

K . 

m

a <.

3

mna 

miy

CY

U 

t. 

r

nr

ay

47

ro

w'' 

J

C7

a

Im

t 

wig

C

N

N

O

N ° 

a

ro

TO

Oc

O

OCL

Q

6

res "

Ci

na

C

qY '

G

v9

r9

61

nrsYY —

0

a ;

d ... 

ra

rn.,
l '

rnx

n

rvY9

mx+ 

N

Gam] 

L. ' 

Y

r

Y

v

m

N

UW

X (" U

Cd. 

q

InSb

O

G

C

a

W

a

t"

7

N  

K

fyU
W

u

ci

r

L

4_ 

vu



ii' 

N

r

a/ 
L

c /% 

i

v

r

i

ri
t

i

rr

s%

r

ilii

4

a

o   

J7  

rii
1

far
G

rr ,

fir

QO

l/ 

r

r6

a

LL

Q

r, 

l / 

n

o

c

o   

uY /

I

rr

l

err   

n  

w _ 

r   % 

a % 

r

ar
i / 

r

Jr  „ 

if

Ghrl

w

R ®  

r '

r

jai/ % 

i /   

r

r  

yi

pal

aldwoj

X

ww . 

6tatob'®
uo
te

X ..,, 

ssar6Oid
ul

X

palJeJS
JON

1_ 

4l. -

C 

C '

a

a

U

TW

U

U

US

C 

r

Hca

r

zLo-- 

e:, 

O

v

co

V

cm

d

Sc 

N

O

O

Ca. 

Q.  

CA.. 

v

m

ra

ur

E :

3

OJ

r

9

b = 

ti

o

v

b

N

4

q

d

CV

v

rr

us

ror - 

W

C

4n

ai
m

12

vi

d

o

oa

2

r

y

a

I



i

r

o

R, 

In

isr

9s

w

m

4

y

j '

P, 

s

m

yr

u

m

F

m

ro

cs

N

V

v {: ."^. 

E" 

cx

s '' 

u

c

2

as

U

c ////

r / ,

k

r . . ' (

r" /  

y

F

N `

rs0
N

N

n

nr

n

E

m

r' 

I-- 

ry

eu

ct

w

rn  

m   

yr

m  

za. /  

f

D

1

n

r

W

r   / / 

r2

N

n ... 

r1

N

L' 

N

r% 

o

T'
a

r

n

p

E: ¢ 

N -

a' 

cL

cs

N

c

r

ou

o

cx. 

r

3

f

a

C3  

lu
c °; 

y % ' / / 

r  

i'

I

F

N

ci

is

is

f

l/ 

f %  

r

1

r //. 

G.

7 ,.. 

cV
e

y ` 

m

F.` !/////// 

i % 

r.

i:%„ 

li /

f%/ 

I////

7

O
ii

i, 

w  

is, 

padaldwo06uio6-
u0

X

x

X

X

saoEoedupr. ,., „

m .................................. 

paYBIS
ION

a

c

u

t. 

cs

iA- 

01

m

IA. 

C

C7

C7

b

o

ti

coT

G

C

C. 

11

11

LL

LL

m

h

mU' 

G7

C7 '

1. 

raro

y

0

E

E

F

as

ca

s- 

tzs

A

G} 

o

L

R„ 

a

0.. 

CL

N

wF0 '

t 

u

Q 

n

m

CL

cx

Y

a

1.

7x

0

N

m :

u

s

13

N

q_ 

y

h

i

u

1 

N `

n

2 ' ° 

2

rx

5, 

C

U

e

m

xy .

fi

CS

V

C

b

1` 

CS).. 

X..

N  

G. _ __ 

tq

C. 

C1

U  .••  

Ss

1. 

y

b69

I

ay

p

cx

cq

Co

W

tts  

x

cv

oCIDAlll
q %

9

w

d

C? 

0

W

CY

Z

W

e%

ir- 

mCi

OWj

Cwww .............. .... .._. 
CO

C ®

G

I



8

P,

m

A
w

M.

T

c

Q

C

Z. " 

a

EX

S

8

zi

yy

13

5

Z 

z

cx

w

x

o, 

o

p

o

o

u

2x

F6

Fp

z

2

Lu

c

Rif

F: 

Z

B

c

P'
l

r, 

C

rX

W

Q

F. 

F

F

e

le

8

w> 

rt

P 

15

co

w

2

z

L

p

co

m

w

N

N

m

as

N

U) '

o

U. 

o

Q) 

E: 

o

p

41U) 

pajoldwojbulob-
up

x

x

x

x

SSDJBOJd
Ul

PaIJ0JG )
ON

C

23

21

Ob

rn

Z

C

b, 

0, 

63

C

Z

yN

u

0. 

to

C"

4

Q. 

C, 

U) 
U) 

en

Q) 

x

41

LL



51

i

C) 

a

OE

RN 

164 

Z

i

j / 

7

z

m  : - 

f % 

N 

1

i/

I

Ii

o

i% 

a

C

j / 

JII'

M / / 

fJ
119

f / / ( 

U

r

U

n"

F

COY

7%%////

fl

j/ 

rf'' 

4G1

U

Q

IJJ

Oi

ttd.. 

i/ 

UJJJI/
JM,
Q/ 

Ail %' 

xp

CFI5

MID

10
Jj'

r /

f/

r

r /'% 

12

I(

Io/ 

Il / 

f/ 

INN

MEMO, 

o / % 

N' 

M.

f//% //

MIMI

liJ / 

Y.//. 

f ® // 

l

9

mn% / 

1k

o

I

oE2

A

f

1

r

r_ 

0  

ns

a

o

Y

Im

Ptl

r

JApyi

I

f++ 

H

f

o - 

I



w

R" o
4- 

t
0

V
nrInII

MCr0IL

9

I

I

1

0

0

CS

I

may

MuWY

7-

p

I

I

1

MuWY
k- 

n

nM

a'

1M

gip

I

I



7i

q01

r"
1

m
01. 

W

Rm

I

EQ

d

Z

C ®

7

O

a

Cd

n

Co

m

Ly

r

y 

6B

L ® 

edd

fl. 

W  

F'! 

L

C
GCO

M

L

c

6 +" 

N

CLas
as

cM

v  

a

Q

o

21E

c  
c  4

ti. 

ID

m

a

Wy

I



w

r

l

TIG

uunaeuamryrw

CD

w
0

as

8t

N
co

L-

0

111h

tf

XI

BYH

OCi

r

lTIG

uunaeuamryrw

as

8t

CA

8 `.

a

111h

XI

0ru

IIIIlumm

Iwl



870A

0
44ra

m
O

I



i 

P

9
0UcEJOax

M0ma

n.

0

N

viii. . . /,.  

h

NUNN

a10

i/

Jn/ 
a

r

1.

r

01_ 

E

y

ro

L)

o

Q

c
zo

C) 

w

E

moLL

v) 

Qi

E

LLl

c

c

c

E

C

i= 

0

O

o

o

O

o

mm. .........,..,..... 

N

w

n

U  

m

m

0

W

is ` 

c

W

m

ur

h

o

w

cu

E

n

U

Mo
o

m

c

m

E

c

m

z 

a

c

o

o

a

o

O ° 

w

5

c

m ° .

o

w

w

as

a

E

m

o> 

o

n. 

c

Z

CU

c '

ro

a

Z

cD

ami (`

u

c '

U

w

E® 

E

Z

n` . 

c

Gyp

an > 

O - Q

c

o

Cl

O

c

2E
o

wfin
ow

a

m

m

oac

0

0

n. 

E

E

oil > 

o

n

ro ° 

f., 

h- 

c

m

CD

In

ay

w

a !

s::: 

Cm

o '

ry

p ... "

ral

c

o

io < 

v

in

asU

m

eu

c

S

0In

E

az

w -

n

E

r

Z

ai.

r

o

c

o

y

rn_ 

c  

m

c

m

C: 

o . ' 

C::: 

C

0) 

m ° 

c)

n

a..

b

u.

u.

a

uJ

w

m

z

a

v

A



RIO

I



R

9
m

0w



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3. B

Mtg. Date March 15. 201. 6.................. 

Dept. Public Works
mmmmm

Item Title: Underground Utility District No. 7

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing; and

2. Adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) revising the completion date for converting the
overhead distribution facilities within Underground Utility District No. 7. 

Item Summary: 

On March 4, 2014, the City Council revised the deadline for the conversion of the overhead
distribution facilities for Phase 7A and 7B of the Underground Utility District ( UUD) No. 7 to April
1, 2016. In Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( FY 2015- 16), city staff encountered multiple unforeseen

challenges with regards to the Lemon Grove Realignment Project. Some of those challenges

included city staff turnover and introducing Rick Engineering to the duties and responsibilities as
the Interim City Engineer and Project Manager for the Realignment Project, which the UUD is
dependent on. Extending the UUD will allow the proper collection and use of funds through the
anticipated construction schedule of the project. 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) revising the date to
June 30, 2017 for undergrounding utilities for both Phase 7A and 7B. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Sufficient funds are allocated within the SDG& E -managed 20A Conversion budget. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within UUD

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

REVISING THE DATE FOR UNDERGROUNDING UTILITIES WITHIN UNDERGROUND

UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 7

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance No. 13, a procedure is established

for the creation of underground utility districts; and

WHEREAS, the City Council found that Underground Utility District No. 7 is in the
general public interest; and

WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 390 which
established Underground Utility District No. 7; and

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2015, the City Council revised the date of completion to
underground the utilities within the boundaries of Underground Utility District No. 7 as April 1, 
2016 for Phase 7A and 713; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Revises and ratifies the date of completion to underground the utilities within the

boundaries of Underground Utility District No. 7 as June 30, 2017 for Phase 7A and
Phase 713; and

2. Directs the City Clerk to provide appropriate noticing of said completion dates in
accordance with Ordinance No. 13. 

M


